Harvey Nash Group plc

Annual Report 2008

v

16/05/2008
COMPANIES HOUSE




Directors, Secretary and Advisers

lan Kirkpatrick

Non-Executive Chairman
Ian Kirkpatrick, aged 63, 1s Non-Executive Charrman  Following a career in consultancy. stockbroking and commerce, he

Jotned Bank of Scotland and became a director 1n the banking division of British Linen Bank Limited, its subsidiary He s
Chairman of Prnime Estates Linuted and 15 also a Non-Executive Director of Baronsmead VCT 4 Plc  He was appointed

Chairman of Harvey Nash in January 1997

Dawid Higgins
Non-Executive Deputy Chairman
David Higgins, aged 49, Non-Executive Deputy Chairman and founder of the business  Unul 1 May 2007 he was Executive

Deputy Chairman  He was previously CEQO and prior to that Joint Managing Director with responsibility for the Executive
Search & Selection Division

Albert Ellis

Chief Executive Officer
Albert Ellis aged 44, 15 Chief Executive Officer and was appointed to the Board 1n February 2006 He was previously the

Group Finance Director He joined the Group in July 1998 as UK Finance Director  He was previously a divisional Finance
Director with Hays Plc

Richard Asheroft

Group Finance Director
Richard Ashcroft, aged 50, 1s Group Finance Director He was appomnted in October 2005, having previously spent 20 years in

senor financial positions 1n a number of UK public companies, mostly in the professional services sector, including Michael
Page Intermational PLC

Simon Wassall

European Managing Director
Simon Wassall, aged 45, has been with the Group for over 10 years and 1s responsible for the UK and European IT recruitment

operations He joined the Group in 1994 to develop the UK regional presence

Tom Crawford

Non-Executive Director
Tom Crawford, aged 57, 1s a Non-Executive Director He was previously Joint Managing Dlrector with responsibility for

Group Operations and the IT File Search Division

Gus Moore
Non-Executive Director
Gus Moore, aged 70, 1s a Non-Executive Director and was appointed in April 1999 He was previously Managing Director of

Telephone Rentals Plc and then on the Board of Hong Kong Telecom and Managing Director of Hong Kong Telecom/CSL  He
has been Chasrman and Non-Executive Director of a number of venture capual backed compames, mainly m the Telecoms and

Computer market sectors
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

I am delighted to teport on the Group’s excellent financial performance for the year ended 31 January 2008 The strong trading
results reflect excellent organic growth complemented by the strategic investment 1n new higher growth markets such as
Sweden and Ireland, while the mcreasing demand for outsourcing and offshoring services underpinned the Group’s revenue
growth Cash generation was stronger than expected, resulting in an overall positive net cash position at the year end

Financial Results

Revenue for the year ended 31 January 2008 wcreased by 27% to £318 6m (2007. £251.7m) Net fee income was £58 Sm
(2007 £48 3m) with profit before tax increasing 31% to £7 6m (2007 £5 8m) Basic earmings per share increased 19% to 7 54p

(2007 6 33p)
The stronger than expected cash generated from operating activities of £14 6m {2007 £4 7m) resulted n a significantly

strengthened balance sheet with a net cash position of £4 2m compared to net borrowings of £2 6m at the 31 January 2007

Dividend !

With the strong growth i earnings and cash gencration, the Board 1s recommending an mcrease 1 the total dividend for the :
year to 1 80p (2007 1 Op) This comprises a proposed final dividend of 1 1p (2007 1 Cp) per share, which will be paid on 8 July ,
2008 to shareholders on the register as at 25 Aprl, and an interim dividend of 0 7p (2007 Nil) per share paid in November

2007

Strategy & acquisitions

The Group’s key strategic business development asset is its unique portfolio of services This competitive advantage 15 a major
factor 1n developing boardroom relationships with our clients and 1n attracting suitable acquisitions nto the Group. A
substantial portion of the increase in revenue has come from successfully cross-selling other services mto our blue-chup chient
base For example, in the UK, the cross-selling of other services represents over 20% of total revenue and many of the offshore

software development opportunities anse through existing relationships

Targeted investment 1n the Group’s market-leading brand has been mamtained throughout the year. Our well known brand
attracts new clients, quality candidates and 1s a key factor n recrmting and retaining talented fee-earners Increasingly, the
brand 1s becomung more visible through the Group’s close association with the Confederation of British Industry. All brand-
related investment 1s tracked to ensure a suitable return on investment from both new and existing relationships

The Group’s geographic coverage was increased in new markets through the acquisition of Alumn: AB, Sweden’s leading
executive search consultancy, and Rescon Limted, a leading IT recruitment and IT solutrons business based in Dublin, Ireland

The Group also expanded its Qutsourcing and Offshore capacity, in line with the increasing trend by our clients to cutsource
IT-related projects, particularly 1n the software development arena  Such projects are longer-term in nature and consequently
enhance the Group’s quality and visibility of eamings During the year, we acquired SilkRoad Systems Limited, a Vietnamese
based IT outsourcing busmness in Ho Ch1 Minh City. We also acquired a significant equity stake in TechDiscovery LLP, a
strategic technology consultancy based in Atlanta, thereby expanding and formalising the already successful existing strategic

partnership

The Group’s ongoing strategy will continue to be based on the successful formula of combining a strong organic growth model
with bolt-on and earmings enhancing acquisitions 1n new markets

Board and Employees

On behalf of the Board, 1 would like to thank all of the Group’s talented employees and associates who have, once again, shown
outstanding professionalism and commitment to our chents and candidates throughout the year

Prospects and Qutlook

We are successfully capitalising on our strategic advantages and leveraging our strong, mternationally recogmised brand.

The current year has started well with robust trading 1n the first two months Our businesses in the US, UK and Europe are all
trading ahead of budget

A e
Ian Kirkpa ick

Chairman
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW

United Kingdom and Ireland

Revenue increased by 15% to £105 8m (2007 £92 2m) and net fee income was up 18% to £29 2m (2007 £24 8m) The higher
growth in net fee income was dnven by increased demand by clients for permanent headcount 1n the [T function combined with
the expansion of our Executive Search business up 43% on the previous year Offshore software deyelopment increased
revenue by 70% reflecting the macro trend for global sourcing and the dnive to reduce technology costs

Operating profit increased by 33% to £4 7m (2007 £3 5m) The increase n operating profit margin from 14 3% to 16 1% was
achieved despite increasing fee-camers by 27% year on year and reflects higher gross margins and the benefits of additonal

economies of scale

The Executive Search and Interim Management businesses continue to expand their delivery expertise into all magor sectors
The Executive Search business benefited from strong demand in the technology and media <ectors, ongoing demand from
business services and the Public Sector practice continued 10 make excellent progress, increasing market share and expanding
the business profitably The Commerce and Industry practice also enjoyed robust growth as manufactuning and industry 1n the
UK benefited from a strong year The new Edinburgh office 15 on track and further progress 1s expected this year

With the acquisition of SilkRoad 1n Vietnam, the software development and business process outsourcing expertise has been
tncreased and new chents won, while high retention rates were registered for existing relationships

Demand for IT technical specialists led to growth across the UK, particularly in the regions with o1l & gas, telecommumications,
media and traditional banking and insurance compames 1n particular continuing to recruit inte the I'T function

Candidate confidence reflects a high level of demand for specialist skills with good quality applicants often recerving more than
one offer We agree with the Gartper 1st Quarter Worldwide CIO Survey 2008 research that the scale of cut-backs 1n
technology spend, following the downtum in 2000 has left much less excess capacity today

In Ireland, demand was strong throughout the year with the newly acquired subsidiary comfortably on track to achieve its first
year targets We have a long-term contract with a key chient in the public sector, where we provide a solutions-based service

Continental Europe

Revenue in mainland Europe wincreased by 43% to £189 Im (2007 £132 6m), and net fee income was up 39% to £20 8m
(2007 £15 Im) Increased demand for Executive Search, combined with higher levels of permanent IT placements in Germany,
Belgium and Switzerland, were the key dnivers in increasing gross margin

Operaung profit tncreased by 31% to £3 Om (2007 £2 3m} as fee-earner headcount increased by 67%, mainly in the strong
Scandinavian regton Economic conditions were favourable throughout the year, with business confidence rising and demand

for IT professionals outstripping supply

The trend across Europe towards liring permanent staff increased dunng the year Organic growth 1n permanent revenue was
30% while the growth in IT contractors 1n the year was 23%

Overall net fee income 1n the Netherlands grew by 30% The Netherlands continued to build on its workforce risk management
outsourcing service which has been introduced in Belgium and Germany ,

In Belgium and Luxembourg overall revenue increased by 26%, with permanent revenue up by 94% Growth came from across |
a diverse client base but the technology and telecommunications sectors were the mamn drivers

The investment made in France resulied in net fee income growing by 42% compared to the previous vear With positive .
expeciations being ~et by the new French government over tackling labour flexibility and deregulauon the Group 1s confident
this investment will pay off 1n the medium term |

In Germany and Switzerland net fee income increased shghtly as margins and contractor numbers growth was lower than in the !
rest of Europe In Zurich IT contractor volumes from the financial services sector were shghtly Jower and in Germany, widely

reported cost reduction programmes (for example Siemens) have reduced margins and volume The Group has therefore

focused on market segments such as Engineering in Germany and clients in Geneva not directly impacted by the slow down 1n

financial services
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Our acquisition in Sweden, which offers executive search and leadership consultancy, has performed well with net fee income
18% ahead of the budget set at the time of acquisition in May 2007 Expansion into Denmark was achieved with the opening of

an office in Copenhagen i November 2007

United States

Whilst market conditions in the US were uncertain during the majonity of the year, our net fee income on a constant currency
basts was broadly simular to the previous year with a fivefold growth in IT solutions underpinming the results Executive Search
was excellent with net fee income up over 70% to £1 2m (on a constant currency basis) demonstrating the strength of the

Group's portfelio of services

Operating profit, at £0 8m (2007 £0 9m), was only 9% lower than the previous year and at constant currency rates broadly
sumlar to the previous year The Group’s response to tightening market conditions has been a timely and prudent trimming of
our cost base, particularly in the IT recrustment division alongside a continuing focus on higher margin activities

The performance of our new strategic IT consultancy, TechDiscovery, has been ahead of our expectations and cross-selling
synergies have been 1dentified and explorted, resulting in a positive start to the new financial year. TechDiscovery’s business 15
less susceptible to cyclical market trends because the projects are tied to client’s core corporate functions or strategic

imtiatives and usually involve long term contracts

Summary

The Group’s key strategic advantages, its strong balance sheet and diverse portfoho of services continue to take the business
higher up the value chain Based on the excellent performances 1n the UK and Europe, the successful acquisitions and the
stability we achieved in the US despite the market uncertainty, we were able to twice upgrade our expectations for full year

profits during the year

We are pleased with the way the current year has started, in particular with all our key markets performing ahead of budget

I look forward to reporting on further progress throughout the year

Albert Ellis
Chief Executive Officer
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Profit and Loss

Revenue increased by 27% to £318 6m for the year ended 31 January 2008 (2007 £251 7m} Net fee income increased during
the year by £10 2 million, while the cost base was ughtly controlled, resulting 1n an improvement it the conversion ratio
(operating profit margm as a percentage of net fee income) from 14% 1n the previous year to 15% Net interest payable was
reduced by 5% 1o £0 9m in line with the strong cash generation and profit before tax rose by 31% to £7 6 million

Taxation

The tax charge for the year was £2 2m (2007 £1 7m), giving an overall effective rate of tax of 29 2% (2007 29 5%) This
reflects the benefits of lower rates of corporation tax during the year 1n certain overseas countries

Minority interest '

The minority interest represents the minority share of profit after tax of TechDiscovery LLP, acquired in November 2007

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share rose by 19% to 7 54p (2007 6 33p) Fuily diluted earnings per share rose by 19% to 7 33p (2007
6 18p)

Balance Sheet

The net book value of tangible fixed assets rose dunng the year as a result of acquisitions Capaital expenditure (£0 6m)
continued to be tightly controlled and was £0 2m lower than depreciation charged

The group had a positive net cash position at the year of £4 2 mullion, having repaid the remainder of the term loan earlier than
expected (£2 Om), compared with net borrowings at the end of the previous year of £2 6m

The value of intangible assets rose during the year by £14 3m mainly as a result of acquisitions during the year

Trade and other receivables increased by £18 8m due to the increased trading levels and acquisitions made dunng the year The
largest increase was 1n the Netherlands, where revenue rose in the year by 68% The mcrease 1n trade and other payables was
also the result of increased trading levels and acquired businesses

Contingent consideration represents the amounts payable in cash for the acquisitions of Alumm AB and TechDiscovery LLP

Cash Flow

There was a trading cash flow of £ 5m (2007 £7 5m) generated from operatuing activities before working capital movements
A further £7 4m was squeezed from working capual resulting 1n a total of £14 6 m being generated from operating activities
Tax paid i the year was £2 3m (2007 £0 6m)

Imual and deferred consideration of £5 2m was payable on acquisitions duning the year, net of cash acquired Capatal
expenditure 1n the year was £0 6m (2007 £0 6m) and represents mainly office infrastructure and IT systems investment,
facilitating the expansion of the Group s fee-earming base

During the year £0 tm (2007 £0 1m) was received from the 1ssue of shares on the exercise of share options Divadends pad
were £1 2m and net interest payable was £0 9m {2007 £0 9m) The balance of the term loan of £2 Om was repaid earher than

expected on 31 January 2008

Banhing Facilities

The Group enjoys sigmificant headroom 1n relation to 1ts agreed banking facilities which total circa £27 4m These comprise
working capital facilities of £12 Om 1n the UK and £13 4m 1n the Netherlands and a UK overdraft facility of £2 Om
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Acquisitions

On 22 May 2007, the Group acquired 100% of the share capital of Alumni AB, an Executive Search and Strategic Leadership
Consultancy in Sweden The consideration comprised cash constderation of £5 1m (of which £4 4m was raised via a vendor
placing) and additional payments which wall be payable in cash currently estimated at £1 4m over the two years ending 30 Apnl
2011 subject to certain profit targets being achieved

On 25 June 2007, the Group acquired 100% of the share capital of S1lkRoad Systems Limited and 1ts subsidiary, SilkRoad
Systems (Vietnam) Limuited, a technology and software development company based in Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam The
consideration comprised initial cash consideration of £0 7m, 226,646 ordinary 5p shares in Harvey Nash Group ple and
additonal payments of up to £0 1m which will be payable 1n shares in Harvey Nash Group plc over the three years ending 30
June 2010 subject to certain profit targets bemng achieved

On 17 August 2007, the Group acquired 100% of the share capital of Rescon IT Limited, an IT recruitment and solutions
business based in Dublin, Ireland The consideration comprised an imual cash consideration of £3 4m, and additional payments
currently estimated at £1 2m which will be payable in shares in Harvey Nash Group plc in the year ended 30 June 2008 subject
to certain profit targets being achieved

On 5 November 2007, the Group acquired 56 6% of the share capital of TechDiscovery LLP, which specialises in business-
focused IT solutions based in Atlanta, USA The consideration compnsed initial cash consideration of £0 8m, and additional
payments currently estimated at £1 Sm which will be payable cash or shares in Harvey Nash Group plc at Harvey Nash’s option
subject to certain profit targets being achieved 1n the period to 30 September 2008

The final tranche of the deferred consideration for the acquisition of the business and certain assets of Blueswit Consulting Inc,
the Group’s Chicagoe based business, of £0 3m was paid in February 2008 based on the results for the year ending on 16
December 2007

=) PV citees

\-.,_‘_______/
Richard Ashcroft
Group Finance Director
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Directors’ Report
for the year ended 31 lanuary 2008

The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements of the Group and Company for the year ended
31 Fanuary 2008

Principal Activities
The Group’s principal activity duning the year was the provision of professional recruitment and outsourcing services, in

particular providing informauon technology professionals for permanent and contract positions worldwide The Group has a
number of overseas subsidianes in Europe USA and Vietnam The parent company 1s incorporated and domiciled in the

United Kingdom

A review of the business and future developments 1s set out in the Chairman’s Statement, Chief Executive’s Operattonal
Review and the Financial Review

Key Performance Indicators
The Board considers the following performance indscators to be key in monitonng the Group's performance

Operatng profit per employee £14,550 (2007 £14.263),
Gross profit per employee £99,973 (2007 £102,250)
Conversion ratto* 15% (2007 14%)

Average debtor days for 2008 42 4 (2007 42 0)

Fee eamer percentage ** 69% (2007 67%)

* Operating profit as a percentage of gross profit
** Fee-carners as a percentage of total employees

Risk Management
The Board reviews the key nsks facing the business regularly In common with the majonty of businesses, the Group may be

subject 1o the nsk of an economic downturn Thus 1s mitigated by offering a comprehensive portfolio of services covering a
broad geographical area, ongoing review of the Group’s financial gearing and, most importantly, by adopting a service mix
strategy which favours longer term annuity revenues An ongoing talent management programme, sponsored by the Group’s
Executive Council, has reduced the risk of loss of key staff In addition, Financial nsk management 1s detailed in note 3

Results and dividends
The Group’s profit before tax for the year was £7 6m (2007 £5 8m) A final dividend of 1 1 pence per share has been

declared on 17 April 2008 amounting to £0 8m subject to shareholder approval at the AGM on 3 July 2008 (2007 1 Op per
share amounting to £0 7m)

Share Capital
On 15 February 2007 the Company 1ssued 20,588 new ordmary shares, with a nominal value of £1,029 40 n relation to

the employee share option scheme

On 20 February 2007 the Company 1ssued 34,000 new ordinary shares, with a nominal value of £1,700 1n relation to the
employee share option scheme

On 9 March 2007 the Company 1ssued 50,000 new ordinary shares, with a nommal value of £2,500 in relation to the employee
share option scheme

On 25 May 2007 the Company 1ssued 5,512,500 new ordinary shares, with a nominal value of £275,625 1n relation to the
acquisition of Alumm AB

On 30 May 2007 the Company 1ssued 25,000 new ordinary shares, with a nominal value of £1.250 in relation to the employee
share option scheme

On 25 June 2007 the Company 1ssued 50,000 new ordmnary shares with a nomunal value of £2,500 in relation to the employee
share option scheme

On 5 July 2007 the Company 1ssued 226,646 new ordinary shares, with a nominal value of £11.332 30 1n relation to the
acquisition of SithRoad Systems Lid

On 19 July 2007 the Company 15sued 29,000 new ordinary shares, with a nominal value of £1 450 1n relation to the employee
share option scheme

During the vear the number of shares in 1ssue increased to 72,440,200 ordinary shares with a nommal value of £3 622.010
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Directors and their Interests

The Directors who held office duning the year and at the date of this report are shown on page 2 In accordance with the
Company s Articles of Association, lan Kirkpatrick, Richard Ashcrofi Simon Wassall, Albert Elhs and Peter Augushine
Moore retire by rotation and being ehgible, otfer themselves for reappomntment  All Executive Directors have service
contracts with the Company terminable by either party giving to the other not less than 12 months notice

The beneficial interests, 1n both shares and share cptions, of the Directors and thewr families are disclosed in greater detail in
the Remuneration Report

Dsabled Persons

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, beaning in mind the respective aptitudes and
abrhues of the apphicant concerned In the event of members of s1aff becormng disabled, every effon 1s made 10 ensure that
their employment with the Group continues and the appropnate training 15 arranged It 1s the policy of the Group that the
traiming, career development and promotion of a disabled person should, as far as possible, be 1dentical to that of a person who

does not suffer from a disability

Environmental Policy
The Group recogmses 1ts responsibilities for the environment and gives due consideration to the possible effects of 1ts acuvines

an the environment The Group s acuivities have a muinor effect on the environment However, 1t 1s the Group’s aim to reduce
the environmental impact of its activities and to operate 1n an environmentally responsible manner

Employee Involvement
Consultation with employees 1s of considerable importance to the Group The views of employees are taken into account when

decisions are made which are likely to affect their interests All employees are aware of the financial and economic
performance of their business units and of the Group as a whole Communication with all employees 1s made through
conferences, announcements, the intranet, briefing groups and the distribution of the Annual Report

Equal Oppertunities
The Group 15 cornmtted to the principle of Equal Opportunities both as an employer and as a recrmitinent services provider

All decisions relating to employment practices are objective, free from bias and based upon work criteria and individual merit

Creditor Payment Policy
The Group’s creditors are paid 1n accordance with terms agreed with them prior to the supply of goods or services The Group

pays all contractors providing IT services within 27 days (2007 27 days) of receipt of thear invoice Other trade creditor days
of the Group for the year ended 31 January 2008 were 67 days (2007 55 days) based on the ratio of Group trade creditors at
the year end to the amounts invoiced dunng the year by trade creditors The Company has no trading activity

Substantial Shareholdings
On 23 April 2008, the Company had been noufied that, in addition to holdings in which the Directors are beneficially

interested, there were holdings of 3% or more in the ordinary share capital of the Company as follows

No of % of

shares total

Unicorn Asset Management 11,610,739 1603
Standard Life Investments 6,019,506 83t
David Treacher 5,114,318 706
JP Morgan As~et Management 5033,207 695
River and Mercantile Asset Management 4,499 851 621
BGI 3,826,723 528
USS 3,608 210 498
2,908 688 402

Gartmore [nvestment Management

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance
Insurance has been 1ahen out by the Company (as permitted by Section 310(3) of the Compames Act 1985) for s Directors

and officers against hlabihities in relation to the Company

Emple) ee Share Schemes

Fhe Directors consider that the opportunity to own shares in the Group 1s a vital part of motivating and retaiming emplovees
Details of the share schemes are included on page 18
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Pensions
The Group operates three defined contrnibution pension schemes the Harvey Nash plc Directors’ Retirement and Death

Benefits Scheme, the Group Personal Pension Plan and a stakeholder scheme

Political and Charitable Donations
The Group made no political or charitable donations during the year (2007 £ml)

Authority to purchase own shares
The Directors on behalf of the Company do not currently have authority to purchase the Company’s own shares

Disclosure of information to auditors
Each director of the company, in office at the time of approval of this report, acknowledges that

e 5o far as the director 15 aware, there 15 no relevant audit information of which the company's auditors are unaware, and

¢ he has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director 1n order to make humself aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the company's auditors are aware of that

Reappointment of Auditors
In accordance with Section 384 and 385 of the Companies Act 1985, a resolution will be put before the sharcholders at the

Annual General Meeting to reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditors for the ensuing year and to authornise the
Directors to fix their remuneration

On behalf of the Board

c:g-l‘cg’kwﬁ-

Richard Asheroft
Company Secretary

24 April 2008
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Corporate Governance
for the year ended 31 January 2008

The Group fully supports the Principles of Good Governance and Code of Best Practice as set out in the FRC Combined Code
1ssued i July 2006 The Board has considered the implications of the revised Combined Code on the Group’s governance and
will comply with those provisions considered approprate for the size of the Group

Application of Principles of Gaod Governance

Board of Directors
During the year the Board of Directors comprised three Executive and four Non-Executive Directors A list of Director

brographies together with their roles 1s given on page | Tom Crawford and David Higgins are not considered independent
owing to interests tn the Group’s shares The Group has an Independent Chairman and Senior Independent Non-Executive
Director who are both members of the Audit, Remuneration and Nomuination Commttees The Executive Board members were
the Chief Executive Officer, Group Finance Director and European Managing Director In addition, the Non-Executive Deputy
Chairman was a member of the Nomnation Commuitee

The Board meets at least 10 times per annum and has a fixed schedule for reviewing the Group’s operating performance In
addiion other meetings are arranged as required to deal with specific 1ssues or transactions  The Board also has a schedule of
matters and responsibilities spectfically reserved to 1tself, the main 1tems of which include

approval of the pubbshed financial results and other statements,

appointments to the Board and other Board Commuttees,

approval of the annual Group Strategic Plan and Budget,

approval for acquistions, mergers and disposals,

approval for new businesses which require start up capatal,

approval of capital expenditure and leasehold agreements over certain thresholds,

approval of matenal contracts over certain thresholds and those not in the ordinary course of business, and
approval of treasury policy and significant financing arrangements

Dunng the year attendance at the pre-arranged meetings was 100% for all Board members apant from Gus Moore (apologies
sent for 1 meeting) and Ian Kirkpatnck {apologies sent for 1 meeting)

The Executive Directors are responsible for the day to day operational and financial management of the Group within the
framework set out by the Board OQOutside the formal schedule of matters reserved for the Board, the Chairman and Non-
Executive Directors make themselves available for consultation with the Executive team as often as necessary

Procedural compliance 1s memitored by the Chatrman and the Group Finance Director {who 1s also the Company Secretary) and
Darectors’ appointment and removal 1s a matter for the Board as a whole Independent professional advice and tramning are
available to all the Directors The Senior Non-Executive Director 15 available for consultatton with shareholders, through the
Company Secretary The Executive Directors have met with the Company’s major shareholders and other potential investors
on a regular basis and have reported to the Board on those meetings

On joimning the Board. a new Director receives appropniate induction including meenng with other Directors and senior
management, visiting the Group’s key operations and meeting the Group’s principal advisers

The Board has a policy of reasonable funding for independent professional advice for all Directors in furtherance of their duties
as Directors of the Company

In relation to non-reserved matters the Board 1s assisted by a number of commuitees with delegated authonity

The board discusses and reviews 1ts performance and membership regularly, both individually and as a whole, and continues to
consider that 11 1s operaung effectively
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Audit Committee
The Audnt Committee meets at least twice a year with the Group’s semor financial management and external auditors 1o review

the interum and annual financial statements, the accounting policies of the Group, 11s 1nternal financial control procedures and
comphance with accounting standards The members of the Commutiee are lan Kirkpatrick (Chairman} and Gus Moore, both

of whom are independent Non-Executive Directors

The Board considers that the membership of the Commuttee as a whole has sufficient recent and relevant financial expenence to
discharge its funcuon The Commuitee has a formal agenda, umetable and terms of reference

During the course of the period under review the Commuttee has

¢ reviewed the financial statements and the financial reporting judgements contained withim those statements for the Group
and any formal anncuncements relaung to the Group’s financial performance,

* reviewed the Group's internal control system and nisk controls,

* reviewed varous reports and recommendations from the Group’s internal audit function,

* made a recommendation to the Board in relation to the appointment, terms of engagement and remuneration of the external

auditors whilst monstoring their independence and objectivity,
¢ reported to the Board any matters, which 1t considered needs action or improvements together with recommended actions,

made 1tself available to hear any concerns from staff, in confidence, and
* reviewed the effectiveness of the audit process

The Commttee’s full terms of reference are available from the Company Secretary on request

The Audit Commuttee applies a policy which governs the proviston of audit and non-audit services provided by the auditors
and, in summary, requires significant non-audit services other than tax and other compliance services to be subjected to a

competitive tendenng process

The Commuttee 1s authorised to engage the services of external advisers, as it deems necessary and at the company’s expense 1n
order 10 carry out 11s function

The Commuttee met twice during the vear with full attendance by 1ts members

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Commuitee meets at least twice a year The members of the Commuttee are lan Kirkpatrick (Chairman) and

Gus Moore, both of whom are independent Non-Executive Directors The Commuttee’s full terms of reference are available
from the Company Secretary on request

The Remuneration Committee determines and approves the broad policy and specific remuneration and long term incentive
arrangements of the Company’s Executive Directors and certain of the senior management The Chief Executive Officer may
be invited to attend and speak at meetings of the Commuttee, but does not participate in any matter which impacts upon his own

remuneration arrangements

The remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors including the Chairman 1« set by the Executive Directors

The Directors” Remuneration Report on pages 15 to 19 includes details of remuneration policy, practices and the remuneration
of the Directors

The Remuneration Commuttee met six times 1n the year with full atiendance by 1ts members
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Nomination Committee
The Company has a Nomination Committee, which provides a transparent process and procedure for the appointment of new

Directors to the Board  The members of the Commuitee are lan Kirhpainck (Chairman), Gus Moore (Senior Independent Non-
Executive) and David Higgins (Non -Executive Deputy Chairman) The Comnultee’s terms of reference, which are available

from the Company Secretary on request include

o responsibility for identifying and nominating candidates for appomntment to the Board
*  evaluaung the balance of <kills, knowledge and expenence required on the Board, and

. SUCCESSIoN planmng

Directors’ Remuneration
Details of Directors’ remuneration and the procedures for developing policy on executive remuneration and for fixing the

remuneration of the Board are contained in the Remuneration Report set out on pages 15 to 19

Relations with Shareholders
The Board maintains regular dialogue with uts institutional shareholders and City analysts by conducting formal presentations,

being readily available for discussion and providing information as required  Shareholder attendance and participation at the
AGM 1\ welcomed

Accountahlity and Audit
The Board made every effort to ensure that this report represents a balanced understandable asvessment of the Group's position

and prospects

The means by which the Board maintains a sound system of internal financial control 1s set out below

Internal Control
The Directors have overall responsibility for ensuring that the Group mamtains a system of internal controls, for monitoring

their effectiveness to provide them with reasonable assurance regarding the rehability of financial information used within the
business and for pubhcation, and that assets are safeguarded There are inherent limitations 1n any system of internal control
and accordingly even the most effective system can only provide reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against misstatement

or loss

The Board identifies and appraises nisks, and maintains control and direction over appropnate strategic, financial, and
orgamsational structure matters with formally defined lines of responsibility and delegation of authonty There are established
procedures for planning and capital expenditure, for information and reporting systems, and for monitoring the Group's
business and 1ts performance The Board has delegated to executive management the :mplementauon of the systems of internal
financial control within an established framework that applies throughout the Group, and 1s responsible for reviewing the

Group’s whistle blowing procedures

The Drirectors believe the following to be the key procedures established to provide internal financial control

The operation of authorisation procedures

Clearly delegated responsibilities

Close involvement of senior management 1n day to day activities

Setting of detailed annual budgets with detailed reporting of vanance analysis on a monthly bawis
The operation of an Audit Commaiitee, supported by an internal audit function

The Dhrectors have reviewed the systems of internal financial control 1n operation during the year The process accords with
the 2005 Tumbull Guidance
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Comphance with Coede Provisions
The Company has complied throughout the year with Section 1 of the Code of Best practice except as follows

Code Provision A3.1 (Board balance and independence), C3.1 (Audit Committee) and B2.1 (Remuneration Committee)
Provision A3 1 and provision C3 1 of the FRC Combined Code indicate circumstances where a director may not be
independent These include having served on the Board for more than mine years from the date of first election, and at any
pont when holding the position of Charrman  Following this, the Chairman 15 required to put imself forward for re-election

every year
The Board has considered the position of Tan Kirkpatrick in light of this and considers that he remams independent

The Board has appointed Gus Moore as the sentor independent Non-Executive Director 1n addition to the Company’s existing
independent Non-Executive Chairman

The remuneration commuttee had two members, including the Chairman

Going Concern

After having made appropriate enquirtes including a review of the 2008/09 Group budget, medium term plans and available
banking facilities compared to funding requirements, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group and the

Company have adequate resources to continue 1n operational existence for the foreseeable future For this reason, they continue
to adopt the going concern basis 1n preparing the financial statements

@lﬁs Wi

Richard Ashcroft

Company Secretary
24 Apnl 2008
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Remuneration Report

for the year ended 31 January 2008

This Report, which has been prepared m accordance with the Direciors Remuneration Report Regulaions 2002 ( the
Regulauons™) outlines the membership and workings of the Remuneration Commuitee (“the Commuttee’ ) and provides an
explanation of the various elements of the Company’s remuneration policy together with details of Directors’ remuneration
respect of the year ended 31 January 2008 In accordance with the Regulations, a resolution to approve this Report will be
propased at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

The Regulations require the Audhtors to repont to shareholders on the information contained 1n the *Directors’ Remuneration’,

Interest 1n Share Opuions , Directors’ Pension Enutlement’ and the Share Option Scheme’ sections 1n this Report ( ‘the
auditable parts’ ) and to state whether, 1n their opimon, these parts of the Report have been properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 1985 (as amended by the Regulations)

Remuneration Policy
Executive remuneration packages are designed to attract, mouvate and retain high calibre executives by rewarding them with

compentive salary and benefit packages These packages are reviewed each year 10 ensure that they are fair and competitive
and reflect the responsibilities and expenence of each Director The Remuneration Commuttee seeks to ensure that they are
supportive of the Group’s business objectives and the creation of shareholder value, and takes advice from external sources 1n
order to determine and develop 1ts policies The Group expects to review this policy on an on-going basis A balanced view 1
taken of Directors’ remuneration split between non-performance reiated and performance related elements

The remuneration package of each Director 1s determuined by the Remuneration Commutiee, taking 1nto account the
performance of the individual, and information from independent sources for similar jobs 1n comparable companies

The Executive Director remuneration packages consist of
* basic salary

» performance-linked bonus

* share options

* company car allowance

* pension contnbution

+ private healthcare insurance

The performance-linked bonus 1s payable depending on the level of Group profit for the year compared fo budget up to a
maximum of 60% of basic salary

Fees payable to the Non-Executive Directors are determined by the Board at the beginning of each financial year having given
due consideranon o market practice

Directors’ Service Contracts
In line with Group policy, Directors’ contracts contain notice periods which do not exceed 12 months

The detatls of the service contracts of those who served as directors dunng the year are

Contractual
Contract Unexpired Notice termination
date term period payments
Executive

Dawvid Higgins (resigned 01 05 07) 010201 Continuous 12 months Unexpired notice period
Albert Ellis 010201 Continuous 12 months Unexpired notice period
Richard Ashcroft 14 1105 Continuous 12 months Unexpired notice period
Simon Wassall 17 10 05 Continuous 12 months Unexptred notice period

Non-Executive
lan Kirkpatrick 07 08 01 Continuous 6 months Unexpired notice period
Tom Crawford 07 08 01 Conlinuous 6 months Unexpired notice period
Gus Moore 070801 Continuous 6 months Unexpired notice period
Dawid Higgins (appointed 01 35 07) 01 0507 Continuous 6 months Unexpired notice pertod

Members of the Remuneration Commattee
I he members of the remuneranon comnuttee durning the vear were Ian Kirkpatrick and Gus Moore

Both members are mdependent Non-Executive Directors lan Kirkpatrick chairs the comnuttee
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Performance Graph
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In the opinion of the Directors the FT All Share Index 1s the most appropriate index against which the total shareholder return
of Harvey Nash Group plc should be measured consideng the vananon in market capitalisation of the Group over the period

The total shareholder gain 1n the five-year period 15 168% compared to the index gam of 83%

Directors’ Remuneration (auditable)

31 Jan 31 Jan

Salary Benefits  Annual 2008 2007
& fees n kind bonus Total Total
£ £ £ £ £

Executive
Dawvid Higgins 37,500 4 682 - 42 182 243,636
Albert Cllis 275,000 51,748 137,500 464,248 422718
Richard Ashcroft 140,000 33 846 70,000 243,846 223,593

Simon Wassall 200.000 21,775 100000 321,775 294 093

Non-Executive

Ian Kirkpatrick 56 000 - - 56.000 56 000
Tom Crawford 24,000 - - 24,000 24000
Gu» Moore 24,000 - - 24,000 24000
Dawvid Higgins 54,500 - - 54 500 -

811,000 112,051 307,500 1,230,551 1,288,040 !

Benefits 1n kind include car allowance pnvate healthcase and a imited contribution to the cost of per<onal tax advice
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The executive directors receive performance payments based on the level of Group profit for the year compared to budget

Interests in Share Options (auditable)
Details of options held by Directors m the Harvey Nash Group plc performance related Share Scheme are set out below

Share
Earliest price Exercise No at No at
Date of exercise  Expiry  ongrant price 01-Feb Granted Exercised Lapsed 31-Jan
grant date date date (p) {p) 2007  in year In year _ 1n year 2008
David Higgins 110403 110406 110413 35 307 180,000 - - - 180,000
010404 010407 010414 39 89 180,000 - - - 180,000
Albert Ellis 110403 110406 110413 35 307 180,000 - - - 180,000
010404 010407 010414 89 89 180,000 - - - 180,000
250506 250509 250516 60 5 60 4 150,000 - - - 150,000
Simon Wassall 010302 010305 010312 635 58 96 102,943 - - - 102,943
251002 251005 251012 34 243 50,000 - - - 50,000
110403 110406 110413 35 307 50,000 - - - 50,000
171005 171008 171015 565 55 100,000 - - - 100,000
250506 250509 250516 60 5 60 4 150,000 - - - 150,000
Richard Asheroft 250506 250509 250516 60 5 60 4 150,000 - - - 150,000

No other Directors have been granted share options in the shares of the Group or other Group entiies None of the terms and
conditions of the share options were varied during the year The remaining options were granted as part of the Harvey Nash

2000 Executive Share Option Scheme The options granted under the Performance Related Scheme are subject to certain
performance critena, including earmngs per share growth The performance criteria associated with this scheme were chosen
to imcentivise the maxmmisation of shareholders’ return

The options were granted at the prevailing market price, calculated as the average of the previous five days mud closing price,
at the time of the grant in accordance with the rules of the scheme There was nil cost to the directors at the date of grant The
market price of the Group shares at the end of the financial year was 45p The range of market prices during the year was

between 45p and 92p

Interest 1n Shares

The interest of the Directors 1n the shares of the company were

24 April 2008 31 Jan 08 31 Jan 07

Ordinary Ordinary Ordmary

shares shares shares

David Higgins — beneficial ownership 6,827,006 6,191,162 6,191,162
David Higgins Incentive Trust 1,601,216 1,801,216
Albert Ellis 410,131 40,704 15,000
lan Kirkpatrick 5,250 5,250 5,250
Tom Crawford 4,576,827 4,576,827 4,576,827
Gus Moore 32,000 32,000 22,000
Richard Ashcroft 26,889 16,704 -
Simon Wassall 26,890 16,705 -
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Included 1n the above, pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act 1985, David Higgins and Tom Crawford are deemed
to be interested 1n their capacity as trusiees, in the ordinacy shares of the Company held by Harvey Nash plc Funded
Unapproved Pension and Death Benefit Schemes and the Harvey Nash Ditectors  Retirement and Death Benefit Scheme As at
the date of thts report and 31 Janvary 2008 the interest was in a total of 941 225 ordinary shares

Dawvid Higgins Incentive Trust

Following the placing and open offer in March 2002, 2,801,216 ordinary shares were placed 1n the Davad Higgins 2002 ‘
Discretionary Trust for the purpose of establishing an additional means of mcentivising certam key employees of the Group,

using funds provided by David Higgins Dav:d Higgins remains a beneficiary of this trust ‘
On st March 2007, 200,000 ordinary shares in the Company were transferred from the David Higgins Incentive Mrusttoa

former employee of the Harvey Nash Group

On 16 December 2002, the David Higgins Discretionary Trust granted options to Albert Ellis over 700,000 Harvey Nash

shares Under the Trust deed these options can be exercised immediately This Trust 1s independeat of the Company Schemes

and granting of options remains at the sole discretion of the Trustees David Higgins and Albert Ellts and therefore the Trust 1s

outside the scope of the Remuneration and Audit Commuttees T'hese options can be exercised at any tume prior to 16

December 2012 for an aggregate exercise price of £1 Any income tax or nanional insurance contributions arising on the

exercise of these options will be payable by the option holder There are no performance criteria assoctated with the exercise of

these options

Directors’ Pension Entitlement (auditable)
The Group made the following pension contributions dunng the year to defined contnbution schemes nominated by the

respective Executive Dhirector

31 Jan 08 31 Jan 07

£ £

David Higgins 3,750 16,800
Albert Ellis 27,500 26,229
Ruchard Ashcroft 14,000 14,000
Simon Wassall 20,000 18,000
65,250 75.029

Share Option Schemes (auditable)
At 31 January 2008, the following options to subscribe for ordinary shares have been granted to certain employees (including

Durectors) under the terms of the Share Option Schemes

The Harvey Nash Group plc Performance Related Share Schemes

The Performance Related Schemes are administered by the Board under the supervision of the Remuneration Commuttee The
schemes are open to all full time employees except those who have had a matenal interest in the Group within the previous 12
months The options granted under the Performance Related Scheme are subject to certamn performance cnitenia including
earmings per share growth The schemes’ exercise pnce 1s determined by the Board but will not be less than the average share
price for the five days immediately preceding the grant of options The Harvey Nash Group plc Performance Related Share
Plan 1s an Inland Revenue Approved Scheme, but the Board 1s able to grant unapproved options under the scheme For
schemes from July 2000 the Group has obtained agreement from the employee that he or she will settle the employer’s national
msurance charge i respect of any gain ansing on eventual exercise All options are granted for mil consideration
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Options Options not

Options at exercisable at exercisable at

Date of Exercisable  Exercisable Exercise 1 February 31 January 31 January
grant from to pnce 2007 Granted Forferted  Exercised 2008 2008
190598 19050t 190508 £4 10 12,178 - - - 12,178 -
010302 010305 010312 £059 607,353 - 10,294 20,588 576,471 -
251002 251005 251012 £0 24 871,000 - 3,000 150,000 718,000 -
1106403 110406 110413 £0 31 825,000 - 25,000 38,000 762,000 -
191103 191106 191113 £083 30,000 - - - 30,000 -
271103 271106 271113 £077 25,000 - - - 25,000 -
010404 010407 010414 £089 360,000 - - - 360,000 -
240604 240607 240614 £070 50,000 - - - 50,000 -
020804 020807 020814 £070 150,000 - - - 150,000 -
151104 151107 151114 £0 80 140,000 - - - 140,600 -
180505 180508 180515 £0 55 205,000 - 20,000 - - 185,000
171005 171008 171015 £0 55 320,000 - - - - 320,000
270406 270409 270416 £0 68 185,000 - 45,000 - - 140,000
2505.06 250509 250516 £0 60 775,000 - - - - 775,000
010606 010609 010616 £0 60 100,000 - - - - 100,000
120407 120410 120417 £075 - 25,000 - - - 25,000
25.0607 2506.10 250617 £0 88 - 940,000 - - - 940,000
251007 251010 251017 £0 66 - 95000 - - - 95,000

103,294 share options lapsed in the year

208,588 share options were exercised 1n the year

20,588 were exercised on 15 February 2007 (share price 79p) 34,000 were exercised on 20 February 2007 (share price 78.5p)

48,473 were exercised on 9 March 2007 (share prnice 77 4p} 1,527 were exercised on 14 March (share pnice 74p) 25,000 were
exercised on 30 May 2007 (share price 77p} 50,000 were exercised on 5 July 2007 (share price 88p)
29,000 were exercised on 20 July 2007 (share price §3p)

On behalf of the Board

Ian lﬂlﬁ/

Chairman

24 Apnl 2008
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Annual Report, the Directors’ Remuneration Report
and the financial statements
for the year ended 31 January 2008

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, the Directars’ Remuneration Report and the Group and the
parent company financial statements 1n accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the directors have
prepared the Group financial statements in accordance with Intenational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Union, and the parent company financial statements and the Directors’ Remuneration Report in accordance with
applicable faw and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) The
Group and parent company financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company and the Group and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period

In preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

+ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
state that the Group financial statements comply with IFRSs as adopted by the European Umon, and with regard to the
parent company financial statements that applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained 1n the financial statements

e  prepare the Group and parent company financial statements on the going concern basis unless it s mnappropriate to
presume that the Group will continue m business, in which case there should be supporting assumptions or
qualifications as necessary

The directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements 1n prepanng the financial statements

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial positton of the Company and the Group and to enable them to ensure that the Group financial statements comply with
the Compamnies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and the parent company financial statements and the Directors’
Remuneration Report comply with the Companies Act 1985 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

The directors are responsible for the maimntenance and mtegrity of the Company’s website Legislation 1n the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissernination of financial statements may differ from legislation 1n other junisdictions.

On behalf of the Board

@‘%@s APPN il

Richard Asheroft
Company Secretary

24 Apnl 2008
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Independent Auditors’ report to the Members of Harvey Nash Group plc

We have audited the Group financial statements of Harvey Nash Group plc for the year ended 31 January 2008 which comprise
the Group Income Statement, the Group Balance Sheet, the Group Cash Flow Statement, the Group Statement of Recognised
Income and Expense and the related notes These Group financial statements have been prepared under the accounting pohcies

set out therein

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of Harvey Nash Group plc for the year ended
31 January 2008 and on the informauen in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that 15 descnibed as having been audited

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the Group financial statements 1n accordance with

applicable law and International N'inancial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union are set out 1n the
Statement of Directors Responsibilities

Our responstbihity 1s to audit the Group financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and
International Standards on Audiing (UK and Ireland) This report, including the opimon, has been prepared for and only for the
company s members as a body in accordance with Section 235 of the Compamnes Act 1985 and for no other purpose We do
not, in giving this opiion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or 1o any other person to whom this report 1
shown or into whose hands 1t may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent 1n writing

We report to you our opinien as to whether the Group financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the Group
financial statements have been properly prepared 1n accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation We also report t¢ you whether 1n our opinion the information given 1n the Directors' Report 1s consistent with the

Group financial statements

In addition we report to you If, in our opimon, we have not received all the informatien and explanations we require for our
audit, or 1f informauon specified by law regarding director’s remuneration and other transactions 15 not disclosed

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects the company’s comphiance with the nine provisions of the
Combined Code (2006) specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authonty, and we report if it
does not We are not required to consider whether the board’s statements on internal control cover all nsks and controls, or

form an opimion on the effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance procedures or its nsk and control procedures

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether 1t 1s consistent with the audited Group
financial statements The other information compnses only the Directors’ Report, the Chairman’s Statement, the Operating and
Financial Review and the Corporate Governance Statement We consider the umphcations for our report 1f we become aware of
any apparent misstatements or matenal inconsistencies with the Group financial statements Our responsibilities do not extend

to any other information

Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing

Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the
Group financial statements It also includes an assessment of the sigmficant estmates and yjudgments made by the directors 1n
the preparation of the Group financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate 1o the Group’s

circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary 1n
order to provide us wrth sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the Group financial «tatements are free from
matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregulanty or error In forming our opinion we alvo evaluated the
overall adequacy of the presentation of information 1n the Group financial statements
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Opinion

In our opimon

+ the Group financial statements give a true and fair view, 1n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Umion, of
the state of the Group’s affairs as at 31 January 2008 and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended,

¢ the Group financial statements have been properly prepared 1n accordance wath the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of
the IAS Regulation, and

s the mformation given 1n the Directors' Report 1s consistent with the Group financial statements

Q\(_,e_u.-._sc,b Tousc C"—"OF"M W

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

28 April 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement
for the year ended 31 January 2008

Notes 2008 2007
£ 7000 £ °000
Revenue 2 &5 318,637 251,742
Cost of sales (260,153} (203,480)
Gross profit 58,484 48,262
Total admimsirative expenses (49,972) (41,530)
Operating preofit 7 8,512 6,732
Fmmance income 893 299
Finance costs (1,787 (1,235)
Profit before tax 7.618 5.796
Income tax expense 8 (2,231) (1,712)
Profit for the year 5,387 4,084
Attributable to
Equity holders of the company 5,305 4,084
Minornty interest 82 -
5,387 4,084
Earnings per share for profit attributable to the equity holders of the
company during the year
- Baste earnings per share S 7 54p 633p
- Diluted earmings per share 9 7.33p 6 18p
Consolidated Statement of Recognised Income and Expense
for the year ended 31 January 2008
Notes 2008 2007
£ '000 £ 000
Profit for the year 24 5,387 4,084
Forewgn currency translation differences 24 1,652 (978)
Total recognised income for the year 7,039 3,106
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the company 6,952 3.106
Minority interest 87 -
7.039% 3,106

The above results are derived from continuing activities
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at 31 January 2008

Notes 2008 2007
£°000 £°000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 1,662 1,450
Intangible assets 11 41,825 27,516
Deferred imcome tax assets 8 1,269 1,304
44,756 30,270
Current assets
Cash 4,184 -
Trade and other recervables 12 74,551 51,747
Total assets 119,491 82,017
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial habilities - borrowings 15 - (819)
Contingent consideratton (689)
Deferred income tax habilities 8 (132) (175)
(821) (994)
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 13 (66,492) (40,736)
Current income tax lhiabihities 14 (1,850) (1,388)
Contingent consideration (2,112) -
Financial liabihities - borrowings 15 - (1,784)
Provisions 16 - (328)
(70,454) (44,236)
Total liabilities (71,275) (45,230)
Net assets 48,216 36,787
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to equity shareholders
Ordinary shares 20 & 24 3,622 3,325
Share premium 22 8,208 4,111
Shares to be 1ssued 24 1,643 595
Fair value and other reserves 24 15,079 15,079
Own shares held 24 (148) (656)
Cumulative translation reserve 24 767 (885)
Retamned carnmngs 23& 24 18,963 15,218
48,134 36,787
Minority interest 1n equity 82 -
Total equity 48,216 36,787

The Consolidated financial statements on pages 23 to 50 were approved by the Board on 24 Apnl 2008 and signed on 1ts behalf by

DT —J P Qe
Ian Kirkpatrick Richard Ashcroft

Chayrman Group Finance Director
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 January 2008

Notes 2008 2007
£°'000 £ 000

Profit before tax 7.618 5,796
Adjustments for
- depreciation 751 789
- loss on disposal of fixed assets - 33
- finance income 6 {893) {299)
- finance coss 6 1,787 1,235
- profit on sale of investment - (449)
= share based employee settlement and share option charge 210 423
Operating cash flows before changes in working capital 9,473 7,528
Changes 1n working capital (excluding the effects of acquisition and exchange
differences on consolidanon)
- increase in trade and other recervables (21,467) (7,639)
- increase in trade and other payables 29,176 5,138
- _ {decrease) mncrease in provisions for habihities and charges (328) 314
Cash flows from operating activities 16,854 5,341
Income tax paid (2,27%) (630)
Net cash generated from operating activities 14,57% 4,711
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 10 {574) (565}
Cash acquired with acquisitions 1,278 -
Purchase of subsidiary undertakings (6,514) -
Proceeds from sale of investment - 449
Interest received 893 299
Net cash {absorbed)/ generated from investing activities (4,917) 183
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings (1,982) (1.000)
Proceeds from 1ssue of ordinary shares 60 129
Dividends paid to group shareholders (1,228) .
Interest paid (1,787) (1235)
Net cash used in financing activities (4,937) {2.106)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 4,725 2,788
Cash and cash equivalents at the begmning of the year (784) (3,371}
Exchange gains /(losses) on cash and cash equivalents 243 201
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 17 4,184 {784)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Genieral Information
Harvey Nash Group plc ( the Company ) and uts subsidianies (together the Group’) 1s a leading provider of specialist

recrurtment and outsourcing solutions The Group has offices in the UK, Europe, Umted States and Vietnam

The Company 1s a public hsted company mncorporated in the UK Its registered address 15 13 Bruton Street. London W1J 6QA
and 1ts lisung 15 on the London Stock Exchange

2. Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below  These policies

have been consistently apphed to both years presented unless otherwise stated

(a) Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of Harvey Nash Group plc have been prepared in accordance with International Financial

Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (IFRSs as adopted by the EU), IFRIC interpretations and the
Compantes Act 1985 applicable to Companies reporting under IFRS The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets and financial"hhabihities (including
denivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss The preparauon of financial statements 1in conformity with 1IFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group's accounuing policies The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant 10 the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 4 The main section of
these financial statements presents the financial statements of the Group prepared under International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) adopted by the European Union Pages 51 to 58 show the financial statements of the Company prepared
under UK Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (UK GAAP)

(0 Amendments to published standards effective in 2008

IFRS 7, Fmancial instruments Disclosures’, and the complementary amendment to IAS 1, ‘Presentation of financ:al
statements — Capital disclosures’, introduces new disclosures relating to financial instruments and does not have any impact on
the classification and valuation of the Group’s financral instruments, or the disclosures relaung 10 taxation and trade and other

payables

IFRIC 8, *Scope of IFRS 27, requires consideration of transactions involving the 1ssuance of equity instruments, where the
wdentifiable consideration received 1 less than the fair value of the equity mstruments 1ssued m order to estabhish whether or not
they fall within the scope of IFRS 2 This standard does not have any impact on the Group’s financial statements

[FRIC 10 Interim financial reporting and impairment’, prohibits the impairment losses recogmised 1n an 1interim period on
goodwill and investments in equaty nstruments and in financial assets carried at cost to be reversed at a subsequent balance
sheet date This standard does not have any impact on the Group's financial statements

(11) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective in 2007 but not relevant

The fotlowing standards, amendments and interpretations are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2007 but are not relevant to the Group's operations

¢ IFRS 4, insurance contracts ,
* IFRIC 7 *Applying the resiatiemen approach under 1AS 29, Financial reporting in hyper-inflationary economies’,
s [FRIC 9, Re-assessment of embedded derivauves’
s IFRIC 6, Liabilities arsing from participating m a specific market
(1) Standards amendments and nterpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been early

adopted by the Group

The following interpretanions 1o existing standards have been published that are mandatory for the Group’s future accounting
but which the Group has not early adopted

e IAS 23 (Amendment), Borrowing costs (eftective from | January 2009}
* IFRS & Operating segments (effective from 1t January 2009)
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¢ IFRIC 14, '1AS 19 — The it on a defined benefit asset, mmmum funding requirements and their interaction’
{effective from | January 2008)

(1v) Interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and not relevant for the Group's operations

e IFRIC 12, Service concession arangements' (effecuve from | January 2008)
e [FRIC 13, ‘Customer loyalty programmes’ (effecuve from 1 July 2008)

(b) Basis of consolidation
The Group financtal statements consolidate those of the Company and all of 1ts subsidiary undertakings drawn up to 31 January

each year and are based on consistent accounting policies

Interests acquired 1n subsidiary undertakings are consohdated from the date control passes to the Group [ransactions and
balances, including unrealised profits, between Group companies are ehmnated

The purchase method of accounting 1s used to account for the acquisition of subsidianes by the Group The cost of an
acquisiion 1s measured as the fair value of the assets given equity instruments 1ssued and habtlities incurred or assumed at the
date of exchange, plus costs directly aunbutable to the acquisibon Idenufiable assets acquired and hiabilities and contingent
hiabilities assumed m a business combination are measured imtially at thear fair values at the acquisiion date, irrespective of the

extent of any minority interest

The interest of minorny shareholders 1n the balance sheet 1 siated at the minonty’s proporuon of the carrying valies of the
assets and lrabihities recognised

(c} Segment reporting

A business segment 1s a group of assets and operations engaged 1n providing products or services that are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of other business segments A geographical segment ts engaged 1n providing products or
services within a particular economic environment that 1s subject to risks and returns that are dafferent from those of segments
operating in other economic environments The Group considers the whole business to be the pnmary segment with the
Group's secondary segment being geographical country of operation

(d)} Revenue recognition
Revenue compnises the fair value of the sale of goods and services, net of value-added tax, rebates and discounts and after

elimnating sales within the Group

The Group denives its revenue 1n the contract services and interim businesses on a time and matenals basis It 15 recogmised as
services are rendered as vahidated by recespt of a client approved umesheet or equivalent For fixed price development work,
revenue 15 recogntsed on the percentage completion bass, using pre-specified milestones or a chient s1gn off to trigger voices
and the estimate of profit For contingency permanent placements, revenue 1s recognised and the chent 15 invoiced on

acceptance of the candidate

Executive search and permanent placement fees are recognised as services are provided, typically in three stages, placement,
shorthist and retainer fee

{e) Property, plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment 15 stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses The cost of
property plant and equipment 1 their purchase cost together with any incidental costs of acquisition

Depreciauon 1s calculated so as to wrnie off the cost of the assets, less their estumated residual values. on a straight-iine basis
onver the expected useful economic lives of the assets concerned The principal annual rates vsed for this purpose are

Leaschold improvements — over the term of the lease
Office equipment - 20% ~traight line

Fumniture, fixtures and equipment — 20% strasght line
Computer equipment — 33 33% sirarght line

Motor vehicles — 25% reducing balance

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusied 1 appropriate at cach balance sheet date  An asset’s
carrying amount 1s wntten down immediately to 1ts recoverable amount if the asset s carrving amount 1~ greater  Gains and
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losses on disposals are determined by companng proceeds with carrying amounts  The changes are included in the income
statement

(D) Foreign exchange
Items 1ncluded 1n the financial statements of each of the Group s entities are measured using the currency of the primary

cconomic environment i which the entity operates {the “functional currency ) The consoltdated financial statemens are
presented n sterhing which s the Company’s functional and presentational currency

Mouetary assets and habilities denonunated in foreign currencies in each company are translated at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date  Transacuons in foreign currencies are translated at the rate prevailing at the date of the

transaction

On consclidation, revenues, costs and cash flows of overseas undertakings are included in the Group income statement at

average ratcs of exchange for the period  Assets and ltabihities denonunated 1n foreign currenctes are translated 1nto sterling

using rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and any differences ansing are taken to the income statement

Exchange differences arsing from the transiation of the net investment in foreign entities and of borrowings and other currency |
instruments designated as hedges of such imvestments, are taken to sharcholders’ equity on consolidation  When a foreign ‘
operation 1s sold, such exchange differences are recogmsed n the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale

{g) Operating leases
Rentals payable under operating lease and contract hire agreements are taken to the income statement on a straight hine basis

over the lease term  Reverse premiums and lease incentive benefits are recognised as a reduction 1n rental expense  The benefit
1s allocated on a straight hine basis over the lease term

(h) Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisiion over the fair value of the Group s share of the net 1dentifiable assets

of the acquired subsidiary at the date of the acquisiion Goadwill 1s tested annually for impatrment and camed at cost less
accumulated rmpairment losses

(1) Impairment of assets
Assets that have an indefimite useful hife are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment and whenever

events or changes 1n circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable  An impairment loss 1s recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount The recoverable amount 15 the bagher of
the asset's fair value less costs of sale and value inuse For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units) Where an impairment subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset 1s increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the onginal carrying value prior to any impairment charges A reversal of an
impairment charge 1s recognised 1n the income statement immediately, unless the relevant asset 15 carrted at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of impairment loss 15 treated as a revaluation reserve adjustment

(j) Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are recognised mutially at fair value A provision for impairment of trade recervables 1s established

when there 1s objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due

according to the onginal terms of the recervables Sigmficant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debior wall
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency i payments (more than 30 days

overdue) are considered indicators that the trade recervable 15 impaired The amount of the provision 1s the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of esumated future cash flows, discounted at the onginal effective 1nterest
rat¢ The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss 15
recogmsed n the income statement withio “adninistrative expenses  When a trade receivable 1s uncollecuible, 1t s written off
against the allowance account for trade receivables

Subsequent recovenies of amounts previcusly written off are credited against administrative expenses 1n the income statement

(k) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks other short-term hiquid investments with

ongmal maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts  Bank overdrafis are <hown within borrowing 1n current
habilities on the balance sheet For the purposes of the cash flow statement cash and cash equivalents are net of bank
overdrafts where the overdrafis are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management

(1) Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity  Where any Group company purchases the Company's equity share capital (treasury

~shares), the consideration paid 1» deducuble from equity atinbutable to the Company s equity holders unuil the <hares are

Page 28




cancelled, re1ssued or disposed of Where such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration recerved 1s included
11 equuty attributable to the Company s equity holders

{m} Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax 1s provided in full using the hability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and habilities and their carrying amounts mn the consolidated financial statements  Deferred income tax 15 determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted by the balance sheet date and expected to apply when the related deferred
ncome tax asset 1s realised or the deferred income tax habihiy 1s settled

Deferred income tax assets are recogmsed to the extent that 1t 1+ probable that future taxable profit will be available agamnst
which the temporary difference can be utihised !

(n} Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders 1s recogmsed as a hability in the Group's financial statements tn the

pertod i which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders  Interim dividends are recogmised when paid

(o) Employee benefits

Pension obligations
The Group operates various pension plans all of which are defined contnbution plans The Group pays fixed contributtons into

a separate enuty The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contnibutions 1f the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior perieds Pension costs on
defined contribution schemes are charged to the income statement 1n the year 1n which they anse

Termination benefits
Termimation benefits are payable when employment 1s terminated before the normal retirement daie or when an employee

accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for benefits The Group recogmises termination benefits when 1t 1s demonstrably
commutted to termunating the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of

withdrawal

Bonus plan
The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses when contractually obliged or where there 15 a past practice that

has created a constructive obligation

Share-based plans
The Group’s management awards certain employees bonuses in the form of share options on a discretionary basis  The options

are subject to three-year vesting conditions and therr fair value 1s recogmsed as an employee benefits expense with a
corresponding increase in retained eamings over the vesting period The proceeds received net of any directly attnibutable
transaction costs are credited to share capital and share premium when the options are exercised For opuions exercised against
own shares held, the shares are removed from the own shares held reserve The Group has applied IFRS 2 *Share based
payments’ to all instruments granted after 7 November 2002 but not fully vested as at 1 January 2005 and has adopted the
Black-Scholes model for the purposes of computing ‘fair value” Deferred tax 1s also provided based upon the expected future
tax deductions relating to share based payment transactions and 1s recogmised over the vesting period of the schemes concerned

{p) Provisions
Provisions are recogmsed when a present obligation exists as the result of a past event and 11 15 probable that this will result 1n

an outflow of economuc benefit the size of which can be rehably estimated  Where the provision 1s long term, such as onerous
contract provistons where the unavoidable costs of meecting oblhigations exceed any economic benefits expected to be received,
the net cash flows are discounted using the Group’s appropriate pre-tax discount rate

{q) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are wnitten off as incurred

(r) Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recogmsed on the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a party 1o the

contractual provisions of the insirument

(s) Financial assets
The group classifies 1ts tfinancial assets in the following categories at fair value through profit or loss and loans and receivables

The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired Management determines the
classification of 1ts financial assets at imtial recognition
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{a) Financial assets at fair vatue through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading A financial asset 1s classified in thes
category tf acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term  Assets in this category are classified as current

assels

(b) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivattve financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted 1n an active

market They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date These are
classified as non-current assets

3 Financial Risk Management

Financing
The Group’s principal financial instruments are bank loans, overdrafts, cash and short term deposits  The Group has other

financial imstruments such as trade debiors and rade creditors that arise directly from 1ts operanions  Acquisitions are financed
through a mixture of equity and medium term borrowings Working capual finance for day-to-day requirements 1s provided
through operating cash generatron nvoice discount faciliies and small short term overdraft facihties  All ot the Group's long
term borrowings are made centrally Where applicable, funds are then made available for the financing of the Group’s

subsidiaries through intercompany loans

Objectives, policies and strategtes
The most sigmificant treasury exposures faced by Harvey Nash are raising finance, managing interest rates and currency

positions as well as investing surplus cash 1n hegh quality assets The Board has established clear parameters, mcluding levels
of authortty, on the type and use of financial instrurnents to manage these exposures Transactions are only undertaken if they

relate to underlying exposures and cannot be viewed as speculative

Capital risk management
The Group’s objectives when managing capual are to safeguard the Group’s ability to contiue as a4 going concern in order to

provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the

cost of capntal
In order to mamtain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, retumn

capital 1o shareholders, 1ssue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt

During 2007/08, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from 2006/07, was to reduce net debt
AL 31 January 2007 the Group had net debt of £2 6m Duning the year ended 31 January 2008 the debt had been repaid and the

Group had a net positive cash balance at 31 January 2008

2008 2007

Net debt £'000 - 2603
Total equity £000 48,216 36,787
Total capital £000 48.216 39,390
- 7

Gearing ratio %

Interest rate risk management
The Group’s policy 1 to minumise interest charges through cash pooling and active cash management

Foreign exchange risk management
The Group s policy 1s to mimimuse foreign currency nsk  Harvey Nash manages 1ts exposure on equity mvestments in overseas

subsidiaries through forewgn currency borrowings  The currency tisk of holding assets and Liabilises 1n forewgn currencies
across the Group 1s managed by partially matching foreign currency assets with foretgn currency habilities

Al 31 January 2008, 1f sterling had strengthened by 10% against the US doilar with all other vanables held conslant operaung
profit for the year would have been £80k (2007 £81k) lower mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses on translation of
dollar-denominated assets and habilities

At 31 January 2008 1f sterling had sirengthened by 5% against the euro with all other vanables held constant operating profit
for the year would have been £273k (2007 £76k) lower mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses on translation of euro-

denomnnated assets and habihtes

Page 30




Credit nsk
The Group has no sigmificant concentration of credit risk It has policies 1 place to ensure that sales of products are made to

customers with an appropriate credit history

The table below shows the credit imut and balance with the Bank ai the balance <heet date

2008 2008 2007 2007

£000 £ 000 £°000 £°000

Rating * Credit Limit Balance Credit Limut Balance

Bank overdraft — secured A-1+ 2,000 - 4,000 784
Current bank loan - secured A-1+ - - 1,000 1,000
Non-Currerit bank loan - secured AA - - 1,000 819

* Standard and Poor's rating

Liquidity risk
Prudent iquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and commutted credu facilities
Management monutors roiling forecasts of the Group’s hqmdity reserve (compnises undrawn borrowing facility, cash and

invoice discounting) on the basis of expected cash flow

4 Critical Accounting Judgements and Estimates

Impairment of goodwill
Determiming whether the goodwill 1s impaired requires an estimation of the value 1n use of the cash-generating units to which

goodwll has been allocated The value in use calculation requires the enuty 10 estimate the future cash flows expected 10 arise
from the cash-generating umit and a suitable discount rate 1n order to calculate present value

Income tax
The Group 1s subject to income taxes in numerous junsdictions Significant judgement 1s required 1n determining the

waorldwide provision for income taxes There are many transactions and calculations for which the ulumate tax determinatton 1s

uncertain during the ordinary course of business The Group recogmses habilies for anticipated tax 1ssues based on estimates

of whether additional taxes will be due Where the final tax outcome of these matters 1 different from the amounts that were

imtially recorded, such difference will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the peniod in which such i

determination s made

Share options
Share options are granted on a discretionary basis and vest afier three years service  The fair value of options granted during

the year was determned using the Black-Scholes valuation model The significant inputs into the model were share price at
grant date, expected price, expected option life and nsk free rate of 4 30% The volatifity measured at the standard deviatnon of
expected share price returns 1s based on staustical analysis of daily share prices

5§ Segment Information
The consohdaied enuity operaies 1n one business segmem being that of recruniment and outsourcing services  As a result, no

addiional business segment information 1 required to be provided The Group’s secondary segment 1s geography The
segment results by geography are shown below including revenue by origin  The directors do not consider revenue by ongin to
be matenally different from revenue by destination

Revenue Segment assets Capital expenditure
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
£°000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £°000 £ 000
United Kingdom & Ireland 105.816 92220 41,666  26.798 380 352
Netherlands 125,184 74 668 38,132 24 567 16 6
Rest of Europe 63,893 57 895 25,525 23 28] 28 42
United States 23,744 26,959 12,440 10 631 48 165
Asia Pacific - - 459 37 102 -
318,637 251 742 118,222 85314 574 565

Total
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6 Finance Income and Costs

2008 2007
£'000 £ 000
Interest expense
Interest payable on bank borrowings (1,759) {1,167)
Other interest - (68)
Interest on prior vear taxes (28) -
Finance costs (1,787) (1,235)
Finance income — bank interest 893 299
Finance costs — net (894) (936)
7. Operating Profit
The following items have been included in amving at operaung profit
2008 2007
£°000 £°000
Employee benefits (note 25) 35,930 29,383
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 751 789
Auditors’ remuneration
- fees payable to the company s auditor for the audu of parent company and consolidated 12 12
accounts
- fees payable to the company’s auditor for the audit of the company’s subsidianes pursuant 232 186
to legislation
- fees payable to the company’s auduior and associates for other services
- services relating to taxation 129 137
- all other services 151 18
Operating lease rentals payable
- Plant and machinery 502 415
- Property 2,688 2,435
Loss on disposal of fixed assets - 33
Net exchange difference on fereign currency borrowings less deposits 30 (2)
Impairment of trade recervables 81 82
Share Opuon Charge and Share based employee settlement (note 30) 210 423
8 Income tax expense
2008 2007
£ "000 £ 000
Corporation tax on profits in the year - UK 530 84
Corporation tax on profits in the year - overseas 1,932 1,458
Adjustments 1n respect of prior years (9 65
Total current tax 2,453 1,607
Deferred tax 222) 105
2,231 1,712

Total tax charge

The tax for the vear 1> higher (2007 lower} than the Group s werghted average rate of corporation tax applied 1o the pre-tax
profit [he differences are explained below
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2008 2007
£°000 £ 000
Profit on ordmary activities before tax 7,618 5,796
Weighted average tax rate 26 45% 31 16%
2,015 1,806
Effects of
Income not subject to tax - (194)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 128 68
Utihisauon of previously unrecognised tax losses (221) -
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax 1s recognised 267 131
Deferred tax adjustment 1n respect of prior vears 4 5
Adjustments to 1ax 1n respect of prior year (9) 65
Other 47 (169)
Total taxation (continuing operations) 2,231 1,712
Current tax
Tax on profit in the year 2,462 1,542
Adjustments in respect of prnior years 9 65
Total current tax 2,453 1,607
Deferred tax
Ongmation and reversal of tming differences (12) (177}
Adjustments 1n respect of prior years 4 5
Deferred tax to equity (214) 277
Total deferred tax charge/(credit) (222) 105
Total tax charge (continuing operations) 2,231 1,712
Deferred Tax
2008 2007
£ 000 £°000
Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax asset to be recovered after more than 12 months 671 784
Deferred tax asset to be recovered within 12 months 598 520
1,269 1,304
Deferred tax habilities
Deferred tax habihity to be recovered after more than 12 months (132) (175)
Deferred tax lrability to be recovered within 12 months - -
(132) (175)
Net deferred tax asset 1.137 1,129
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This 18 analysed below

Accelerated tax  Unremutted Share-based
Asset depreciation earnings pa) ments Tax losses Other Total
£°000 £'000 £ 000 £°000 £°000 £ 1000
1 February 2007 13 - 447 520 324 1,304
(Charged)/credited to
income statement and
equity 4) - {238) (230) 437 35
I February 2008 9 - 209 290 761 1.269
Accelerated tax  Unremtted Share-based
Liability depreciation earnings payments Tax losses Other Total
£°000 £°000 £°000 £°000 £ 7000 £ 000
1 February 2007 - {113 - - (62) (175)
(Charged)/credited to
income statement and
equity - (19} - - 62 43
1 February 2008 - (132) - - - (132)

Due to the uncertainty of recoverability, deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses, accelerated capital allowance and short
term timing differences of £1,203,000 (2007 £623,000) have not been recognised Future tax charges may be reduced as a
result of tax losses for which a deferred tax asset 1s currently not recogmsed In addition, the change 1n the standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK from 30% to 28% which will take effect 1n April 2008 1s expected to impact upon the future tax

charge of the Group

9. Earmings Per Share

2008 2007
Profit attributable to shareholders £'000 5,305 4,084
Weighted average number of shares 70,339,958 64,542,753
Basic earnings per share 7.54p 6 33p

Bastc carmings per share 1s calculated by dividing the earmings atirtbutable (o ordinary shareholders by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in 1ssue during the year, excluding those held in the employee share trust, which are treated as

cancelled

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares n 1ssue 1s adjusted to assume conversion of all
drilutive potential ordinary shares The Group has two categones of potential ordinary shares those share options granted to
employees where the exercise price 1s less than the average price of the Company’s ordinary shares during the year and

deferred consideration shares to be tssued

2008 2007
Profit atitnbutable to shareholders £ 000 5,305 4,084
Weighted average number of <hares 70,339,958 64 542 753
Effect of dilutive secunines 2,064,640 1533120
Adjusted weighted average number of shares 72,404,599 66 075 873
Diluted earnings per share 733p 6 18p
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10. Property, Plant and Equipment

Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Office and Computer Motor
improvements equipment equipment equipment vehicles Total
£°000 £°000 £ 000 £°000 £'000  £°000
Cost
At | February 2007 1,399 686 1,257 6,831 20 10,193
Exchange adjustments 32 2 10 2 - 46
Acquinitions 5 5 185 84 13 292
Additions at cost 76 34 62 402 - 574
Disposals - . . 37 . (37)
At 31 January 2008 1,512 727 1,514 7,282 33 11,068
Accumulated depreciation
At I February 2007 964 651 1,070 6,052 6 8,743
Exchange adjustments 9) (5) (25) (11) (0 (51}
Charge for the year 89 33 94 534 1 751
Disposals - - - (37) - 37y
At 31 January 2008 1,044 679 1,139 6,538 6 9406
Net book amount
At 31 January 2008 468 48 375 744 27 1,662
The Group held no assets under finance leases or hire purchase contracts 1n the year
Furnmiture,
fixtures
Leasehold Office and  Computer Motor
unprovements  eqguipment equipment equipment vehicles Total
£°000 £7000 £ 000 £'000 £°000  £°000
Cost
At | February 2006 1,397 667 1,201 6,551 20 9,836
Exchange adjustments {19) (13} (28) (32) - (92)
Additions at cost 65 42 B3 373 - 565
Disposals {44) (10) (1) 61} - (116)
At 31 January 2007 1,399 686 £.257 6,831 20 10,193
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 Tebruary 2006 910 648 1,026 5,503 5 8.092
Exchange adjustments (7 10 (14) 24) - (55)
Charge for the year 73 23 58 634 1 789
Disposals () {10y - {61) - (8%
At 31 January 2007 964 651 1,070 6,052 6 8,743
Net book amount
At 31 January 2007 435 35 187 779 14 1,450

The Group held no assets under finance leases or hire purchase contracts 1n the vear
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11 Intangible Assets

2008 2007
Goodwill £°000 £°000
Cost
At 1 February 27,516 28.463
Additions (provisional see note 19) 12,644 -
Adjusiments* - (156)
Exchange adjustments 1,665 {791)
At 31 January 41,825 27,516
* The adjustment 1n the prior year relates to goodwill in SBS Inc
The carrying amounts of goodwill by acquisition are as follows
2008 2007

£7000 £ 000
Harvey Nash BV 2411 2,165
Harvey Nash US and HN plc 6,145 6,067
Techpartners Group 10,803 10,807
HN IT Consulung NV 5,276 4775
Impact Executives Limited 3,702 3,702
Alumnm AB 6,710 -
Silk Road BVI 1,017 -
Rescon Limited 3,386 -
TechDiscovery LLP 2,375 -

41,825 27,516

During the year the goodwill in respect of each of the above subsidiaries was tested for impairment 1n accordance with IAS36

All were assessed to have a value in use 1n excess of their respective carrying values, and hence ne other adjustments to

goodwill were considered necessary

The key assumptions 1n the value 1n use calculations were

The forecasts were based on pre-tax cash flows denved from approved budgets for the 2008-2009 financial year Management

believe the forecasts are reasonably achievable

Subsequent cash flows were increased over the next five years at 5% and thereafter at 2% for the next fifteen years

The pre-tax discount rate used was based on the industry weighted average cost of capital for each country and varied between

792% and 8 86%

12 Trade and Other Recelvables

2008 2007
£°000 £ 000

Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade recervables 60,036 34,965
Less Provision for bad and doubtful debts (306) (225)
59,730 34,740
Other recervables 643 167
Prepayments and accrued income 10,178 16 540
70,551 51747

As of 31 January 2008, trade receivables of £59 7Tm (2007 £34 7m) were fully performing
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Trade receivables that are less than three months past due are not considered impaired As of 31 January 2008 trade recewvables
of £19 9m (2007 £10 3m) were past due but not impaired This 1s consistent with normal commercial pracuces and pnor years
These relate to a number of independent customers for whom there 1s no recent history of default The ageing analysis of these

trade recervables 1s as follows

2008 2007

£°000 £ 000

1 — 2 months 15,267 6,902
2 — 3 months 2,695 2,196
Over 3 months 1,909 1,185
19.871 10,283

As of 31 January 2008, trade recervables of £0 3m (2007 £0 2m) were impaired and provided for

The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to customers which are 1n unexpectedly difficult economic siuations It
was assessed that a portion of the receivables 1s expected to be recovered  All the impaired receivables are over 3 months past
due The creation and release of provision for impatred receivables have been included 1n ‘administrative expenses’ 1n the

income statement The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets

Movements on the group provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows

2008 2007

£ 7000 £°000

At | February 225 530
Provision for receivables impatrment 105 63
Receivables wnitten off durning the year as uncollectible (22} (362)
Unused amounts reversed 2) (5)
306 225

At 31 January

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contamm impaired assets

The maximum exposure (o credit rsk at the reporting date 1s the carrying value of each class of receivable listed above The

group does not hold any collateral as security

The carrying amounts of the Group s trade and other recervables are denominated 1n the following currencies

2008 2007

£°000 £ 000

Sterling 12,796 12,442
Euros 40,787 17,641
US dollar 2933 3525
Other currencies 3.215 1,132
59,730 34,740
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13 Trade and Other Payables — current

2008 2007
£°000 £ 000
Trade payables 34,520 18.949
Other 1ax and social secunty payable 6,500 3346
Accruals and deferred income 15,082 18,359
Other pavables 390 82
66,492 40,736
14. Current Tax Liabilities
2008 2007
£°000 £°000
Current tax labilities 1,850 1,388
15. Financial Liabilities — borrowings
2008 2007
Current £°000 £ 000
Bank loans and overdrafts due within one year or on demand:
Bank overdraft — secured - 784
Bank loan — secured - £,000
- 1,784
Non — Current
Bank lcan — secured - 819
- 2,603

The term loan was repaid early on 31 Januvary 2008 There are invoice discounting facilities secured over the UK and Dutch

debtor books The overdraft 1s secured on a share pledge 1n subsidiaries and cross guarantees with subsidianes

16. Provisions

The provision at 31 January 2008 comprises the provision for future fease rental obligations on onerous leases

£°000

Provision at 1 February 2007 328
Release of provision to income staterment (253)
(7%)

Charge for property provision

Provision at 31 January 2008

The provision 1n prior year was for one property in the UK and 1s no longer required at 31 January 2008
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17. Analysis of Changes in Net Debt

1 February 2007 Cash flow Non cash Foreign 31 January
movements exchange 2008

movements
£000 £000 £000 £°000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents (784) 4,725 - 243 4,184
{784) 4,725 - 243 4,184
Debt due within one year (1,000) 1,982 (819) (163) -
Debt due after one year (819) - 819 - -
(1.819) 1,982 - (163) -
Total (2,603) 6,707 - 80 4,184

The non-cash movements reflect changes in the matunty of the debt

18. Operating Lease Commitments
The Group has total future commitments under operating leases for each of the following penods.

2008 2008 2007 2007
Vehicles, Vehicles,
plant and Plant and
Property equipment Property Equipment
£°000 £°000 £°000 £°000

Commitments under non-cancellable

operating leases:

Within one year 2,780 4 2,332 382
Later than one year and less than five years 7,360 678 7,538 406
After five years ass - 1,405 2
10,528 982 11,275 790

19. Business Combinations

The Group made four acquisitions in the period. As allowed under IFRS 3, the Group 1s using the 12 months afier acquining the
businesses to consider whether there are intangible assets that should be recogmsed separately from goodwill.

The directors do not expect the intangible assets to be matenal as the majority of the value relates to the workforce but
consideration will be given to areas such as brand and customer relationships

In all cases, the provisional fair value of the net assets acquired 1s approximately equal to the acquiree’s carrying amount

Alumni AB

On 22 May 2007, the Group acquired 100% of the share capital of Alumni AB, an Executive Search and Strategic Leadership
Consultancy in Sweden

The consideration comprised initial cash consideration of £4 6m and additional payments which will be payable in cash
currently estimated at £1 8m over the four years ending 30 Apnl 2011 subject to certain profit targets being achieved

The acquired business contributed revenues of £3 6m and operating profit of £0.9m to the Group for the period from acquisition
to 31 January 2008 If the acquisition had occurred on 1 February 2007, consolidated revenue and consolidated profit for the
year ended 31 January 2008 would have been £319 7m and £8 6m respectively

Details of provisional net assets acquired and intangible assets are as follows:
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£ 000

Initial cash paid — net proceeds of share 1ssue 4,136
Imtial cash paid — directly by the Group 4351
Contingent Consideration — paid 516
Contingent Consideration — current 637
Contingent Consideration — non-current 689
Direct costs relating to the acquisition — paid 243
Total purchase consideration 6,672
Fair value of net idenufiable assets acquired (549)

6,123

Intangible Asset

The intangible asset 15 aitnbutable not only to Alumm AB’s workforce but also its strong position and profitability in its market
and the synergies expected to anise after 1ts acquisition by the Group

The assets and habilities arising from the acquisition are as follows

£000
Fixed Assets 76
Cash 297
Recervables 737
Payables (561)
Net identifiable assets acguired 549
Qutflow of cash to acquire business, net of cash acquired
£000
Cash Consideration 4,587
Cash and Cash equivalents in subsidiary acquired (297)
Cash outflow on acquisition 4,290

Harvey Nash raised £4 4m gross (£4 14m net} to fund the acquisition by placing an additional 5,512,500 shares at 80p

SilkRoad Systems Limited

On 25 June 2007, the Group acquired 100% of the share capual of SilkRoad Systems Limited and its subsidiary, SilkRoad
Systems (Vietnam) Limited, a technology and software development company based in Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

The consideranion compnised 1mtial cash consideration of £0 7m, 226,646 ordinary 5p shares in Harvey Nash Group plc and
addinonal payments of up to £0 1m which will be payable 1n shares 1n Harvey Nash Group plc over the three years ending 30
June 2010 subject to certain profit 1argets being achieved

The acquired business contributed revenues of £0 5m and operating profit of £0 I'm to the Group for the penod from acquisition
to 31 January 2008 If the acquisition had occurred on | February 2007, consolidated revenue and consohdated profit for the
year ended 31 January 2008 would have been £318 6m and £8 5m respectively

Details of net assets acquired and 1ntangible assets are as follows

£ 000

Imu:al cash paid 707
226,646 ordinary 5p shares in Harvey Nash Group plc 197
Contingent consideration 116

Direct costs relating to the acquisiion - accrued 92
Total purchase consideranion 112
Fair value of net idenufiable assets acquired (90)
Intangible Asset 1,622
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The miangible asset s attributable to SitkRoad Systems (Vietnam) Limuted's strategic fit with the Group's Outsourcing and
Offshoring capabilities

The assets and habihties ansing from the acquisition are as follows

£ 000

Fixed Assels 60
Cash 18
Recervables 165
Pavables (153)
Net 1dentifiable assets acquired 90

Outflow of cash to acquire business, net of cash acquired

£000

707

Cash Consideration
Cash and Cash equivalents in subsidiary acquired (18)

Cash gutflow on acquisition 689
Rescon IT Limited
On 17 August 2007, the Group acquired 100% of the share capital of Rescon IT Limited, an IT recruitment and solutions
business based tn Dublin, Ireland The consideration compnised 1mitial cash consideration of £3 4m, and additional payments
currently estimated at £1 2m which will be payable in shares 1n Harvey Nash Group plc over the three years ending 30 June
2010¢ subject to certamn profit targets being achieved
The acquired business contributed revenues of £3 6m and operaung profit of £0 Sm 10 the Group for the period from acquisition
10 31 January 2008 If the acquisition had occurred on 1 February 2007, consolidated revenue and consolidated profit for the
year ended 31 January 2008 would have been £321 6m and £8 8m respectively
Details of net assets acquired and intangible assets are as follows
£ 000
Imitial cash paid 3416
Contingent consideration 1.201
Direct costs relating to the acquisition 168
Total purchase consideration 4,785
Fair value of net identifiable assets acquired (1,664)
Intangible Asset 3,121
The intangible asset 15 attributable to Rescon IT Liumited's <trong workforce as well as its strong position and profitabihity in 1ts
geographical location and the synergies expected to anse after 114 acquisition by the Group
The assets and habilities arising from the acquisition are as follows
£ 000
Fixed Assets 129
Cash 750
Recevables 1,360
Payables {575)
Netdenufiable assets acquired 1,664

Page 41




Ouiflow of cash to acquire business net of cash acquired

£ 0G0
Cash Constderation 3416
Cash and Cash equivalents w subsidiary acquired (750
Cash outflow on acquisition 2,666
TechDyscovery LLP
On 5 November 2007. the Group acquired 56 6% of the share capital of TechDiscovery LLP, which specialises 1n business-
focused IT solutions based in Atlanta, USA The consideration comprised imitial cash consideration of £0 8m, and additional
payments currently eshimated at £1 Sm which will be payable in cash or shares in Harvey Nash Group plc at Harvey Nash's
discreuon subject to certan profit targets being achieved 1n the period to 30 September 2008
The Group’s share of the acquired business’ revenues was £0 6m and share of operating profit was £0 2m for the period from
acquisition to 31 January 2008 If the acquisition had occurred on 1 February 2007, consohdated revenue and consolidated
profit for the year ended 31 January 2008 would have been £320 Im and £8 4m respectively
Details of net assets acquired and intangible assets are as follows
£ 000
Imitral cash pad 787
Contingent consideration 1,498
Direct costs relating to the acquisition 67
Total purchase consideration 2,352
Farr value of net identifiable habilities acquired 26
Intangible Asset 2,378
The intangible asset 1s attnbutable to TechDiscovery LLP's workforce as well as its strong position and profitabihity i its
market and the synergies expected to arise after its acquisition by the Group.
The assets and lrabalities arising from the acquisition are as follows
£ 000
Fixed Assets 27
Cash 213
Recervables 192
Payabies (478)
Total lrabihties acquired (46)
Minority interest 20
Net identifiable habilhities acquired (26)
Qutflow of cash to acquire business, net of cash acquired
£ 000
Cash Consideration 787
Cash and Cash equivalents in subsidiary acquired (213)
574

Cash outflow on acquisition
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20. Called Up Share Capital

2008 2007
£°000 £ 000
Authorised
110,000,000 (2007 75,000,000) ordinary shares of 5p each 5,500 3.750
Allotted and fully paid
72.440,200 ordinary shares of 5p each (2007 66,492 466) 3.622 3,325
The Harvey Nash Employment Benefit Trust held 126,775 shares (2007 402,790 shares)
Movement in shares in issue 2008 2007
shares shares
Ordmary shares of 5p each
At 1 February 66,492,466 62,737,678
Allotted under share option schemes 208,588 380,943
Acquisition of Alumm AB 5,512,500 -
Acquisition of S1lk Road systems 226,646 -
Deferred Consideration for Snowdogs L1.C - 833,061
Deferred Consideration for Bluesuit Consulting Inc - 2,540,784
At 31 January 72,440,200 66,492,466

21, IFRS 2 Share Based Payments

The Executive Share Option Plan (ESOP) was introduced in January 2003 Under the ESOP the remuneration commaittee can
grant options over shares in the company to employees of the Company Options are granted with a fixed exercise price equal
to the market price of the shares under option at the date of grant The contractual hfe of an option 1s 10 years Awards under
the ESOP are open to all full ume employees except those who have had a material interest in the Group 1n the previous 12
months Options granted under the ESOP will become exercisable on the third anniversary of the date of grant, subyect to the
growth 1n earnings per share over that period exceeding the compounded annual growth in the Retail Prnices Index (RPI) by 3%
per annum Options were valued using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model No performance conditions were included in
the fair value calculattons The fair value per option granted and the assumptions used n the calculation are as follows

2008 2007
Number of employees 127 95
Options 1ssued since 7 November 2002 4,865,000 3,805,000
Vesung period (years) 3 3
Expected volatibty 0.49 044
Opuon hife (years) 3 3
Expected hife (years) 3 3
Risk free rate 4.3% 43%
Expected dividends expressed as a dividend yield 3.8 13
Possibility of ceasing employment before vesting 20% 20%
Expeciations of meeting performance critena 100% 100%
Average fair value per option 023p 022p

The expected volatihty 15 based on histonical volatiluy over the last five years The expected hfe v the average expected peniod
to exercise  [he nsk free rate of return 15 the yteld on zero-coupon UK gosernment bonds of a term consistent with the
assumed option life A reconciliation of opuon movements over the year to 31 January 2008 1s shown below
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2008 2007

Number Weighted Number Weighted

('000) average exercise ( 000) Aaverage exercise

price price

Outstanding at 1 February 4,656 053 4,58] 051
Granted 1,060 08s 1070 065
Forfent (103) 0.55 (617) 071
Exercised (208) 0.29 (378) 034
Outstanding at 31 January 5,405 0.60 4,656 053
Exercisable at 31 January 2,824 0.50 2.371 039

The total charge for the year relating to employee share based payment plans was £0 2m (2007 £0 2m), all of which related to
equity-settled share based payment transactions Afier deferred tax the total charge was £0 2m (2007 £0 2m)

22 Share Prenuum Account

2008
£°000
At 31 January 2007 4,111
Premium on shares 1ssued dunng the year under share option schemes 50
Acquisitions 1n the period 4,320
Costs associated with rarsing equaty (273)
At 31 January 2008 8,208
23 Retained Earnings
2008 2007
£°000 £ "000
At 1 February 15,218 (4,210)
Employee share options and boaus plan (117) 160
IFRS 2 Deferred Tax charge to equity (215) 277
Capital Restructuring - 15,063
Goodwill adjustment - (156)
Profit for the year 5,365 4,084
Dividends paid (1,228) -
At 31 January 18,963 15,218
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24 Shareholders’ Funds and Changes in Shareholders® Equity

Share Share Shares Fair Own Cumulative  Retained Total
capital premium to be value shares translation earnings equity
issued and held reserve
other
reserves
£ 000 £°000 £ 000 £°000 £°000 £°000 £°000 £ 000
Balance at
1 February 2007 3,325 4,111 595 15079  (656) (885) 15,218 36,787
Employee share option
and bonus plan 10 50 (263) - 508 - (117) 188
IFRS 2 Deferred Tax
charge to equity - - - - - - (215) (215)
Acquisitions in the
period 287 4,320 1,318 - - - - 5,925
Costs associated with
raising equity - (273) - - - - - (273)
Profit for the year - - - - - 5,305 5,305
Dividends paid - - - - - - (1,228) (1,228)
Currency translation
adjustments - - (7) - - 1,652 - 1,645
31 January 2008 3,622 8,208 1,643 15,079  (148) 767 18,963 48,134
Share Share Shares Fair Own Cumulative  Retained Total
capital premium to be value shares  translation earnings equity
issued and held reserve
other
reserves
£ 000 £°000 £°000 £°000 £°000 £'000 £°000 £'000
Balance at
1 February 2006 3,137 19,064 2,532 13,152 (656) 93 (4,210) 33,112
Employee share option
and bonus plan 19 110 263 - - - 160 552
IFRS 2 Deferred Tax
charge to equity - - - - - - 277 277
Capital Restructuring * = (15063) - - - - 15.063 -
Payment of deferred
consideration 169 - (2096) 1927 - - - -
Profit for the year - - - - - 4.084 4,084
Goodwill adjustment
{note 11) - - - - - - (156) (156)
Currency translation
adjustments - - {104) - - (978) - (1082)
31 January 2007 3.325 4,111 595 15,079 (656) (885) 15,218 36,787

* On 26 July 2006 the High Court of Justice approved the cancellation of a proportion of the Harv ey Nash Group plc share

premium account

The share premium resen e comprises share premuum on the 1ssued share capial
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The shares to be tssued comprise the outstanding liabilities relating to the deferred consideration for the acquisition of Bluesuit
Consulung Inc Rescon IT Limited, SilkRoad Systems Limited and other share based payments The deferred con~ideration for

the acquisition of Blueswit Consulting Inc has been settled post year end 1n cash

The other reserves include £1 7m relating to a capital redemption reserve created on flotaon The remainder represents share

premium on share capital 1ssued 1n relation to the purchase of certain acquisitions
The own shares held reserve relates to the onigimal cost of shares held by the Harvey Nash Employment Benefit Trust
The cumulative transiatton reserve represents foreign currency movements taken 1o reserves

The retained earnings reserve represents the cumulauve profit of the Group

25. Employees and Directors

Staff costs for the Group during the year 2008 2607
(including directors) £°000 £°000
Wages, and salanes 30,508 25,138
Social security costs 4,035 2,972
Other pension costs (note 26) 1L177 850
Share option charge and share based employee settlement 210 423
35,930 29,383
2008 UK Rest of Total
Average number of people employed World
(including directors)
Directors 3 - 3
Sales 185 221 406
Administrative 105 74 179
293 295 588
2007 UK Rest of Total
Average number of people employed World
(including directors)
Directors 4 - 4
Sales 151 166 317
Administrative 100 55 155
255 221 176
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Key management compensation 2008 2007

£ '000 £ 000
Salanes and short-term employee benefits 3,555 3521
Post-employment benefits 230 216 '
Share based payments - 252

3,785 3,989

Key management 1s defined as key employees at divisional director level 1n the Group as well as Executive Board members

Drrectors 2008 2007
£ 000 £ 000 '

Fees 159 104
Basic salaries, allowances and taxable benefits and car allowance 1,072 1,184
Aggregate emoluments 1,231 1,283
Pension contnibutions 65 75
Emoluments of Chairman 56 56

492 423

Emoluments of lighest paid Director (including pension coniributions)

Details of the remuneration of each Director, which form part of the audited financial statements, are set out in the
Remuneration Report on pages 15 to 19

26. Pensions

Harvey Nash has in place three pension schemes, the Harvey Nash plc Directors’ Retirement and Death Benefits Scheme, a
Group Personal Pension Plan provided by Natonal Provident Institution, Legal and General, and Scottish Widows, and a
stakeholder scheme with Legal and General and Scotush Widows which had no participating members at the year end

The Harvey Nash plc Directors’ Retirement and Death Benefits Scheme (the Scheme’) 1s a small self-administered scheme It .
15 an exempti-approved scheme under Chapter 1 of Part XIV of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 The assets of the

Scheme are held separately from the Company by trustees The current trustees are TFA Crawford, DC Higgins, DH Treacher

and Scottish Equitable which 1s the pensioner trustee The three individual trustees are the only members of the Scheme The

Company has the power to appoint individual trustees

The retirement scheme 1s provided on a defined contribution basis The contributions 1n the year were £ml (2007 £16,800)

The Group Personal Pension Plan (the ‘Plan’} 1s a defined contnbution scheme provided by National Provident Institution,
Legal and General, and Scottish Widows The Group's normal policy 15 to invite employees to joun the Plan automatically on
completion of three years’ qualifying service although semor employees may be tnvited to join earlier at the discretion of the
Directors The Group contributes 5% and the emiployee contnibutes 3% of the employee s basic eamings (excluding bonuses)
to the Plan The Group’s total contribution to the Plan for the vear to 31 Janvary 2008 was £402,911 (2007 £344,022)

The Group operates scparate dufined contnbution schemes in all the vverseas locattons The Group » total contribution to defined
contribution schemes in overseas locations for the year to 31 January 2008, was £774.089 (2007 £489,178)
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27. Related party transactions

Banking Cross Guarantees

The toliowing compantes have given seeunty to Han ey Nash Group ple the Company
The Group guarantees have been entered 1nto by the Companies listed below and relate to any payment due under the Banking

agreement by any of the companies listed below

Name of company

Security

Security

Harvey Nash plc

Harvey Nash Resource Management Limited

Intenim Management In Information Technology Limited

Nash Direct Limited

Vertis Consulting Limited
Mort:mer Spinks Limited
Techpartners International Limuted
Harvey Nash Group EBT Limited
Impact Executives Holdings Limited

Impact Executives Limited

Broadbay Networks Inc

Group Guarantee
Group Guarantee
Group Guarantee
Group Guarantee
Group Guarantee
Group Guaraniee
Group Guarantee
Group Guarantee
Group Guarantee

Group Guarantee

Group Guarantee

Debenture

Debenture

Debenture

Debenture

Debenture

Debenture

Debenture

Debenture

Debenture

28 Investments

Principal Subsidiaries and Branches

The details of the pnincipal subsidiary companies and branches owned directly or indirectly by the Company or Harvey Nash

plc as at 31 January 2008 were as follows

Name of company Country of Proportion of Principal activity

mcorporation and ordinary share

operation capital and

voling rnghts

Harvey Nash AG Switzerland 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash BV The Netherlands 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash GmbH Germany 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash IT Consulting NV Belgium 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash NV Belgium 100% Recrmtment consultancy
Haney Nash Offshore Development Centre Branch - Vietnam 100% Software development
Harvey Nash plc England 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash SA France 100% Recruitment consultancy
Impact Cxecunves Lid England 100% Recruitment consultancy
Mortimer Spinks Limited England 100% Recruniment consultancy
Harvey Nash Inc us 100% Recruitment consultancy
Rescon Limited [reland 100% Recnuitment consultancy
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Alumm SA Sweden 100% Recrustment consultancy

SilhRoad BVI Vietnam 100% Software development
Harvey Nash Consulung (Scotland) Limited Scotland 70% Recrurtment consultancy
TechDiscovery Us 56 6% Sofiware development

All subsichary compantes are con~olidated
The directors believe that the book value of investments is supported by their underlying net assets

29. Denvative Financial Instruments

The Group's financial instruments compnse cash, bank loans, and various items such as trade debtors and trade creditors that
anse directly from 1ts operations The fair value of financial assets and habilities 15 approximately equal to their book values

Additional disclosures are set out n the accounting policies relating to nsk management  An explanation of the role that
financial nstruments have had during the year in the management of the Group's funding hquidity and foreign exchange 1s
provided on page 27 of the Annual Report

In accordance with IAS 39, ‘Financial instruments Recogmition and measurement”, the Group has reviewed all contracts and
confirmed that none contain embedded derivatives that are required to be separately accounted for if they do not meet certain
requirements set out in the standard There were no embedded denvatves at 31 January 2008

The Group held no dervative financial instruments at 31 January 2008 (2007 none) requinng to be fair valued

Maturity of financaal liabilities
The maturity profile of the carrying amount of the Group’s non-current hab:lies at 31 January was as follows

2008 2007
Term loan Term loan
£°000 £°000

- 819

Between one and two years

Borrowing facilities

The Group had the following undrawn commutted facthiies available at 31 January 1n respect of an overdraft with a
maximum facility of £2 Om at 31 January 2008 (2007 £4 Om) All conditions precedent to the overdraft were met at 31

January 2008 and 31 January 2007

Undrawn borrowing facilities Floating 2008 2007
Fixed rate rate Total Total

£'000 £000 £°000 £ 000

Expiring within one year - 2,000 2,000 3216

30 Share based payments

2008 2007

£'000 £ 000

Share based payments - management bonus 53 263
Share based pavments - IFRS 2 charge 157 160
210 423
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31. Dividends

The dwidends pawd in vear end January 2008 were £1 2m (2007 ml)

The proposed final dividend of £0 8m (1 1p per share) 1s subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on
3 July 2008 (2007 1 Op per share amounting to £0 7m) and has not been included as a hability at 31 January 2008

2008

£7000

Final divadend for year end January 2007 of 1 Op per share 721
Intennm dividend for year end January 2008 of 0 7p per share 506
’ 1,227

Proposed final dividend for year end January 2008 of | Ip per share 795
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Independent Auditors’ report to the Shareholders of Harvey Nash Group plc

We have audited the parent company financial statements of Harvey Nash Group plc for the year ended 31 January 2008 which
comprise the Balance Sheet and the related notes These parent company financial statements have been prepared under the
accounting policies set out therein We have also audsted the information 1n the Directors’ Remuneration Report that 1s
described as having been audited

We have reported separately on the Group financial statements of Harvey Nash Group plc for the year ended 31 January 2008

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report, the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the parent company
financial statements 1n accordance with apphcable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (Umted Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

Qur responsibility 1s to audit the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be
audited 1n accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland) Ths report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance
with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose  We do not, 1n giving this opinion, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or 10 any other persen to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent 1n writing

We report to you our opinion as to whether the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the
parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly
prepared 1n accordance with the Compames Act 1985 We also report to you whether 1n our opinion the information given n
the Directors' Report 1s consistent with the parent company financial statements

In addition we report to you 1f, 1in our opinion, the company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all
the information and explanations we require for our audit, or 1if mformation specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration
and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We read other information contamed in the Annual Report and consider whether 1t 1s consistent with the audited parent
company financial statements The other information comprises only the Directors” Report, the unaudited part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report, the Chairman’s Statement and the Operating and Financial Review We consider the implications for our
report 1f we become aware of any apparent misstatements or matenal inconsistencies with the parent company financial
statements Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing
Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures 1n the
parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited It also includes an
assessment of the sigmificant estimates and judgments made by the directors 1n the preparation of the parent company financial
statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the company’s ¢ircumstances, consistently apphied and
adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary 1n
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the parent company financial statements and the
part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other
wrregulanty or error In forming our opinton we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited

Opinion

In our opinion

e the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, 1n accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 January 2008,

+ the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors” Remuneration Report audiied have been properly
prepared 1n accordance with the Compames Act 1985, and

« the infgapation given mn the Directors' Report 1s consistent with the parent company financial statements

e ke/hosy (2eper Unf

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London
28 April 2008
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Company Balance Sheet
as at 31 January 2008

2008 2007
£000 £°000
Notes {Restated *)
Fixed assets
Investments 3 51,819 39,066
51,819 39,066
Current assets
Debtors 4 8,977 8,696
Cash at bank 1,523
10,500 8,696
Creditors due within one year 5 637) (301)
Net current assets 9,863 8,395
Total assets less current liabilities 61,682 47,461
Creditors due after more than one year 6 (12,448) (6,411)
Net assets 49,234 41,050
Capital and reserves
Share capital 7 3,622 3,325
Shares to be 1ssued 8 1,643 595
Share premium account 8 8,208 4,111
Capital contnibution 8 20,000 20,000
Other reserves 8 13,494 13,337
Profit and loss account 8 2,267 (318)
Equity shareholders’ funds 9 49,234 41,050

* See note |
The financial statemenis on pages 53 to 58 were approved by the Board on 24 Apnl 2008 and signed on 1ts behalf by

J ee—

Ian Kirkpatrick
Chairman

é&c{ruma

Richard Ashcroft
Group Finance Director
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Basis of Preparation
These financial statements are prepared on the gomng concern basis. under the historical cost convention, and n accordance

with the Companies Act 1985 and applicable accounting standards in the Umted Kingdom The principal accounting policies,
which have been applied consistently throughout the year, are et out below

As allowed by S230 Companies Act 1985, no profit and loss account 1s presented 1n respect of the parent company

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available to parent companies under paragraph 3C of FRS 25 “Financial
Instruments Disclosure and Presentation not to provide the information otherwise required by paragraphs 51 to 95 of the
«tandard, as the Group » consolidated financial statements, in which the Company 15 included, provides equivalent disclosures

under IFRS 7 Financial mstruments Disclosures”

The Company has adopted UITF44 'Group and treasury share transactions' in these financial statements Where a parent entity
grants nights to 11s equity instruments to employees of a subsidiary, and such share-based compensation 1s accounted for as
equity-setiled mn the consolidated financial statements of the parent, UITF44 requires the subsidiary to record an expense for
such compensation 1n accordance with FRS20 (Share-based payments), with a corresponding increase recognised 1n equity as a
contribution from the parent Consequently, in the financial statements of the parent (Harvey Nash Group plc), the Company
has recogmised an addition to fixed asset investments of the aggregate amount of these contnibutions for all grants of equity
instruments made subsequent to 7 November 2002 The increase 1n respect to year end 31 January 2008 was £0 2m The
adoption of this pronouncement has required the restatement of the comparative results, where £0 2m was recognised as the
opeming adjustment at 31 January 2006, with a further £0 2m recogmsed for the year ending 31 January 2007

2 Accounting Policies

(a) Foreign exchange
Transactions denomunated 1n foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the

transactton Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rates of exchange ruling on the balance sheet date and any
differences arising are taken to the profit and loss account

(b) Taxation
Deferred taxation 1s provided in full for matenal timing differences except where recoverability of a deferred tax asset 1s
considered to be remote in the foreseeable future Deferred tax balances are not discounted unless the effects are considered to

be matenial to the Company’s results

{c) Investments
[nvestments held as fixed assets are shown at cost less provision for impairment Impairment reviews are conducted annually

(d) Related Party Transactions
The company has taken advantage of the exemption under paragraph 3(c) from the provisions of FRS8, Related Party

Disclosures’, on the grounds that it 1s wholly owned subsidiary of a group headed by Harvey Nash Group ple, whose accounts
are pubhcly available

(e) Dividend distnibutions

Dividend distnibutions to the Company's shareholders are recognised as a lability 1n the Company’s financial statements 1n the
period 1n which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders Intenm dividends are recognised when paid
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3. Investments

Fixed asset investments 2008 20607
(Restated)
£'000 £ °000

Shares 1n group undertakings
At | February 39,066 38,664
Increase — share-based payments (see note 1) 242
At | February 38.906
Increase — share-based payments (see note 1) 157 160
Addiions 12,596 -
51,819 39,066

At 31 January

The carrymg value of the investments was tested agamst discounted future cash flows during the year The forecasts were based
on pre-tax cash flows derived from approved budgets for the 2008-2009 financial year Management believe the forecasts are
reasonably achtevable Where the future cash flows could not support the carrying value an impairment was recognised

Principal Subsidianes and Associates

The details of the principal subsidiary companies and branches owned directly or indirectly by The Company or Harvey Nash

plec as at 31 January 2008 were as follows

Name of company

Country of incorporation
and operation

Proportion of
ordinary share
capital and
voling rights

Principal activity

Harvey Nash AG

Harvey Nash BV

Harvey Nash GmbH

Harvey Nash IT Consulting NV

Harvey Nash NV

Harvey Nash Offshore Development Centre
Harvey Nash plc

Harvey Nash SA

Impact Executives Lid

Mortimer Spinks Limited

Alumm AB

Silk Road

Rescon Limited

Harvey Nash In¢

Harvey Nash Consulting (Scotland) Limited

Switzerland

The Netherlands
Germany
Belgium
Belgium

Branch - Vietnam
England

France

England
England
Sweden
Vietnam

Ireland

us

Scotiand

100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
70%

Recruitment consultancy
Recruiiment consultancy
Recruitment consultancy
Recruitment consultancy
Recruitment consultancy
Software development

Recruitment consultancy
Recruitment consultancy
Recruitment consultancy
Recnuitment consultancy
Recruitment consultancy
Software development

Recruniment consultancy
Recruitment consultancy

Recruuttment consultancy
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4 Debtors

2008 2007
£'000 £°000
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 8.977 8,696

Interest 1s charged at market rate on intercompany funding balances in accordance with formal loan agreements between the

parties

5. Creditors: Amounts Falling Due Within One Year

2008 2007
£000 £000
Bank overdraft - 301
Deferred consideration 637 -
637 30!
6. Creditors Ameounts Falling Due After More Than One Year
2008 2007
£'000 £ 000
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 11,759 6,411
Deferred consideration 689 -
12,448 6,411
Interest 1s charged on intercompany funding balances in accordance with formal loan agreements between the parties
7. Share Capital
2008 2007
£'000 £'000
Authorised
110,000,000 (2007 75,000,000) ordnary shares of 5p each 5,500 3,750
Allotted and fully paud
72,440,200 ordnary shares of 5p each (2007 66,492,466) 3,622 3,325

A reconcihiation of movements in share capital 15 presented 1n note 20 of the consohdated accounts of Harvey Nash Group ple
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8 Reserves

Share Share  Shares Caputal Other Profit and Total
capital  premum tobe  Contribution reserves loss account equity
1ssued

£'000 £°000 £°000 £°000 £ 000 £°000 £ 7000
Balance at
As at | February 2007
as previously stated 3,325 4,111 595 20,000 12,935 (318) 40 648
Prior year adjustment
(see note 1) - - - - 402 - 402
As at 1 February 2007
restated 3325 4,111 595 20,000 13,337 (318) 41,050
Employee share option
and bonus plan 10 50 (263) - 157 - (46)
Acquisitions 1n the
period 287 4,320 1,318 - - - 5.925
Costs associated with
raising equity - (273) - - - - (273)
Dividends
received - - - - - 4,000 4,000
Dividends
paid - - - - - (1228) (1,228)
Loss for the year - - - - - (62) (62)
Exchange loss - - {7 - - {125) (132)
31 January 2008 3,622 8,208 1,643 20,000 13,494 2,267 49,234

The share premium reserve compnses share premium on the 1ssued share capual

The shares to be 1ssued comprise the outstanding liabilities relatng to the deferred consideration for the acquisition of Bluesuit
Consulung Inc and other share based payments

The capital contribuuign reserve was created on flotation

The other reserves represents share premium on share capital 1ssued 1n relation to the purchase of certain acquisitions

The dividends recerved relate to a dividend paid from Harvey Nash plc

The profit and loss account represents the cumulative deficit of the Company

9 Reconcihation of movement in shareholders’ funds

2008 2007

£'000 £000
{Lo~s)/Profit for the year [1:54) 18
Dividends received 4,000 -
Duvidends paid (1.228) -
Exchange loss (132} (798)
Issued share capital (including premiumy}) 4,394 298
Shares to be 1»sued 1,055 263
Payment of deferred consideration - (169)
Employee share opuon charge 157 160
Net decrease in shareholders’ funds 8.184 (228)
Opemng sharcholders funds (restated ~ece 41.050 41 278
note §)
Closing equity shareholders’ funds 49,234 41 050
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10. Profit Attributed to the Parent Company

The loss for the year ended 31 January 2008 1n the financial statements of Harvey Nash Group plc, the Company. was £62,000
before the receipt of dividends (2007 profit £18,000) As allowed by $230 Companies Act 1985, no profit and loss account 1s
presented 1n respect of the parent company

11. Employees and Directors
Harvey Nash Group plc, the Company employed no staff in the year (2007 nil), other than directors

Amounts paid by Harvey Nash Group plc, the Company 1n respect of Directors 1n the year was ml (2007 ml}
See note 25 1n Harvey Nash Group plc accounts for details of the Directors remuneration from the Group

12 Related party transactions

The following companies have given security to Harvey Nash Group plc, the Company

Name of company Secunity Security
Harvey Nash plc Group Guarantee Debenture
Harvey Nash Resource Management Limited Group Guarantee Debenture
Intennm Management In Information Technology Group Guarantee Debenture
Limited

Nash Direct Limuted Group Guarantee Debenture
Vertis Consulting Limited Group Guarantee Debenture
Mortumer Spinks Limited Group Guarantee Debenture
Techpartners International Limited Group Guarantee Debenture
Harvey Nash Group EBT Limited Group Guarantee -
Impact Executives Holdings Limuted Group Guarantee Debenture
Impact Executives Limited Group Guarantee Debenture
Broadbay Networks Inc Group Guarantee -
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